=

K & P International Holdings Limited
WA RAA

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(7 P52 GE A e or 2 AR & 7))
(Stock Code B 3 15§ : 675)

Annual F3R

Report

* For identification purpose only (E£H.5) 20] 6




CORPORATE INFORMATION

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED:
Income statement
Statement of comprehensive income
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Pages
BIX

2-3

5-6

7-8

9-24

25-27

28-38

39-52

53-58

59

60

61-62

63-64

65-66

67-147

148

B &

Contents

EEREREEA BB

EFeWmS

RS g REARE

B AZ AR E

REZIBHRE

24
o>

IbEES
FEBAK

FAREAR R

Bk
&

<

1# &=

x

K>
el

BEn

BT I ot

hFEMBHE

ERERERERAT
—F-AEEH




NAEER

Corporate Information

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)

Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)
Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Leung Man Kay (Chairman)
Kung Fan Cheong
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman)
Leung Man Kay

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay

Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ng Kwong Kui

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Wing Lung Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Agricultural Bank of China

=g
BITES
BIER(EE)
R (BILE)
BYFBITES

&S
R E
Fn

HITERE
BIER(EE)
R

BRERE

RXE(LE)
LEE
Fne
FHEaE
LEE(EE)
R E
REEAR
RRIEM(EE)
LEE

R HE
Fnds
AAWE

RH1E

B BLEm

RGN EH AR AR
ES- ]
FEFERRIT
ERRIT(BE)BRAH
KIERITHRAF

BB LSELRITBRDA
B TR RIT(EM)BRAF
AHRITHRAA]

B R RIRTT

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016




PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER
Reed Smith Richards Butler

BERMUDA LEGAL ADVISER

Conyers Dill & Pearman

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

Units 2304-06, 23rd Floor
Riley House

88 Lei Muk Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.kpihl.com

STOCK CODE
675

DA ER

Corporate Information

FERDBFERE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

ROBFEREEEDE

BEEERERA A
&BE
ERKNER1835K
ABFFL221E
BB EEEN

B B AT

BREARERER

Conyers Dill & Pearman

BRI

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

RMBERTEEX MR

'k

AR

2B
FUKIE88I
ER
23182304-06 %

ut

www.kpihl.com

B A3 18R

675

BEHEERZERARAA

—EAEEH
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Financial Highlights

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-1F
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT
Revenue WA 431.0 431.8
(Loss)/profit attributable to RATEA ARG (B1B) 5
owners of the Company (8.1) 0.2
Property, plant and equipment  #1% « = MR 1E 195.5 210.3
Equity s 233.1 246.1
Basic (loss)/earnings per share  EIEXK (EE) 27 HK(3.04) centsi&fll HK0.06 cent&fll
REVENUE BY OPERATING SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION
REBE D ZWA B EE 5 2 WA
2016 2015 2016’ 2015‘
2016 2015
Hong Kong &4 9.6% | 13.1%
© Mainland China F BIARE 16.4% | 14.9%
@ Japan and other Asian countries
AARREMEMER 23.8% | 15.1%
@ North America 463 9.2%| 9.6%
2016 2015 @ South America FEZEM 1.6%| 2.8%
@ Precision parts and components fE%Z 54 79.4% | 79.8% @ Europe B 37.6% | 42.8%
@ Consumer electronic products  EFHEH 20.6% | 20.2% @ Other countries HAE R 18% | 1.7%
Total 45T 100.0% | 100.0% Total #85+ 100.0% | 100.0%
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
report the annual audited results of the Company together with the
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2016.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$431.0 million, representing a 0.2% decrease
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$52.6 million this year, representing a 13.3% decrease from the
previous year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$8.1 million (2015: profit of HK$0.2 million).

Basic loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to HK3.04
cents (2015: earnings HK0.06 cent) per share.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The segment of consumer electronic products failed to produce
adequate improvement in performance and recorded losses from the
years ended 31 December 2014 to 2016. Provision for impairment on
segment assets and other costs of approximately HK$13.1 million were
made and incurred in 2016 that comprised of slow-moving inventories,
machines, equipment and decoration as well as staff compensations.

The turnover of the consumer electronic products segment slightly
increased to approximately HK$88.6 million, representing a 1.6%
slightly increase. The operating loss of this segment was increased
to approximately HK$21.2 million (2015: HK$11.3 million) included
the provision as mentioned above. If the provision was excluded, the
operating loss of this segment will be decreased to approximately
HK$8.1 million, representing a 27.9% decrease, after streamlining
the operation since the beginning of 2016.

The turnover of the precision parts and components segment amounted
to approximately HK$342.4 million, which slightly decreased by 0.6%.
Benefited from the increasing demand of the newly established
customers and launching new products in the second half of 2016, the
operating profit in this segment increased to approximately HK$16.3
million (2015: HK$14.2 million), which the operating results for the
second half of 2016 had improved as compared with the first half of
2016 as well as the second half of 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

If excluded the above-mentioned provision of approximately HK$13.1
million made this year, the Group’s profit for the year increased to
approximately HK$5.0 million (2015: HK$0.2 million). The selling
and distribution costs increased by 2.3% to approximately HK$35.4
million and administrative and other expenses increased by 3.8% to
approximately HK$36.4 million. The finance costs decreased by 7.2%
to approximately HK$1.7 million due to the decrease in financing
activities.

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

During the last few years, the Group had incurred capital expenditure
of more than HK$60.0 million in the precision parts and components
segment to enhance the production capacity and efficiency. These
enhancements were appreciated by our customers resulting in not
only increase in sales orders and expansion of our customers’ base,
but also speeding up the automation level solving the problem of
labour shortage. Together with the depreciation of Renminbi easing
the pressure of manufacturing cost, we are confident that the Group
will continue to achieve steady business growth in this segment.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue our focus on developing
the precision parts and components business, we will actively invest
in production automation as well as new technology to increase
production capacity, strengthen our sales and marketing, expand the
customer base and business scope, so as to enhance our profitability.
The Group’s financial position remains healthy, and is strong enough
to finance our daily operation and expand the business in the future.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank our board of directors,
management team and all our staff for their contribution, and also
thank for the support of our shareholders and business partners over
the years.

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The following highlights the Group’s results for the year ended 31
December 2016.

e Turnover decreased by 0.2% from the prior year to approximately
HK$431.0 million for the year.

e Gross profit decreased by HK$8.1 million from 2015 to

approximately HK$52.6 million in 2016.

e Loss from operating activities before finance costs was
approximately HK$6.6 million for the year, while, a profit was
approximately HK$2.0 million for the last financial year.

e Finance costs decreased by HK$0.1 million from last year to
approximately HK$1.7 million.

e Loss after tax for the year was approximately HK$8.1 million.

In the year under review, turnover of the precision parts and
components segment had decreased by 0.6% as compared with the
previous financial year. Turnover of the consumer electronic products
segment had increased by 1.6% as compared with the prior year.

The Group's overall gross profit had decreased by 13.3% from the
previous year.

The Group's finance costs had decreased to approximately HK$1.7
million for the year due to the decrease in financing activities from
banks and other financial institution.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and loan facilities provided by its principal bankers and other
financial institution in Hong Kong.

The total borrowings from banks and other financial institution
included all term loans, finance leases, import and export loans, which
amounted to approximately HK$42.3 million as at 31 December 2016.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy. At the end of the
reporting period, the aggregate balance of cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$24.4 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

The Group's borrowings are on a floating rate basis and are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States dollars. These
match with the principal currencies in which the Group conducts its
business.

The gearing ratio on the basis of net debt divided by the total capital
plus net debt as at 31 December 2016 was 31.4% (2015: 31.7%).

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 December 2016, the Group’ s machines and equipment with
carrying amount of approximately HK$30.9 million (2015: HK$33.5
million) were pledged under finance leases.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 267,004,800 ordinary
shares in issue with total shareholders’ equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$233.1 million.

FUND RAISING

Other than obtaining general loan facilities to finance the Group’s
trading requirements and finance leases to finance the acquisition of
machines and equipment, the Group did not have any fund raising
activities in 2016.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total workforce of
approximately 1,922 of which approximately 49 were based in Hong
Kong, approximately 5 were based in overseas and approximately
1,868 were based in Mainland China.

The Group remunerates its employees largely based on the prevailing
industry practice and labor laws. Since December 1996, the Company
has adopted a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the employees of the Group.

Moreover, under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong, the Group has operated a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for all its Hong Kong
employees. For overseas and Mainland China employees, the Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme operated by the respective local governments.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board of the Company believes that corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Company and has adopted various
measures to ensure that a high standard of corporate governance is
maintained. The Company has applied the principles as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and regularly
reviews its corporate governance codes to ensure compliance with the
CG Code. In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016, except for the deviation in respect of
the separation of the roles of chairman and chief executive officer.
Considered reasons are provided in the section of chairman and chief
executive officer.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors

Lai Pei Wor (Chairman)
Chan Yau Wah (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors representing more
than one-third of the Board with at least one independent non-
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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TRER/RE
Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities and delegation of functions

The Board of the Company is collectively responsible for the oversight
of the management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. The overall management
of the Company’s business is vested in the Board. The Board has
delegated the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to
the executive directors. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees various
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.

The Board focuses its attention on matters affecting the Company’s
overall strategic policies, finances and shareholders. These include
financial statements, dividend policy, significant changes in accounting
policy, the annual operating budget, certain material contracts,
strategies for future growth, major financing arrangements and major
investments, risk management strategies, treasury policies and group
structure.

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The Board members are fully committed to their roles
and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’ value in
the long run, and has aligned the Group’s goals and directions with
the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to the management.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in respect
of director’s liability.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year ended 31 December 2016, four regular board meetings
were held at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company and
one annual general meeting was held. The attendance record of each
director is set out below:
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD MEETINGS AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ETEEBRRRBAFRE®)

(continued)
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (continued) EEZBERESHETLIRE)
Attendance of annual Attendance of
general meeting Board meetings
in 2016 in 2016
—REHE —E-XRFHE
Name of director Espg BREREFAERE Y0 PN
Lai Pei Wor FREEA 11 4/4
Chan Yau Wah BRAEE 171 4/4
Kung Fan Cheong HEa= 1/1 4/4
Leung Man Kay R E 1/1 4/4
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph %= 1/1 4/4
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION TEE AR AL
The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. The RANRMRERBEE

Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out hereunder:

(a)

develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to the employees and directors of the
Company;

review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report; and

review these terms of reference and their effectiveness and from
time to time recommend any necessary changes.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are not
separate and are performed by Mr. Lai Pei Wor. Since the Board will
meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company, the Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company and believes that this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors have contracts with the
Company for a specified period of two years and are appointed
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the CG Code.

Each independent non-executive director has made an annual
confirmation of independence to the Company and the Company
considers these directors to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. None of the directors is related to each other.

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph who has been serving as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for more than 9 years, has
confirmed his independence with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers Mr. Li Yuen
Kwan, Joseph is still independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and will continue to bring
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, all directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. All directors also participate in
continuous professional development programmes such as external
seminars organised by qualified professionals or reading books and
articles, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training received
by the respective directors are kept by the company secretary of the
Company.

The individual training record of each director received for the year
ended 31 December 2016 is summarised below:

FERERRE

ROBPHEEZHBEEERER  ARRERE
SHFEHBEZERGANRRLEHRE 2H
AR RREFNALERHETRER
atEl - A BERERALIER ZINEE
HEUHEEANXE  RFHEFTEL
BRERMENESZNB LG - BEF
PR 2 ER BB AR R AMEFE -

HE-F—AF+-A=+—ALEE &
EEFEEEY 2 BRI S T ¢

Number of training received
that are relevant to

the business or

directors’ duties

EXEHEBRESEHEZ

Name of Director EEHA 3Z IR E
Lai Pei Wor FEEE N 1
Chan Yau Wah FR & 2E 1
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 1
Leung Man Kay RE 3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph &3y 1

All the directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ng Kwong Kui (“Mr. Ng"”) was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company in 2009. Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Ng has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Executive
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website (except Executive
Committee) and are available to shareholders upon request.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

The majority of the current members of each Board committee (except
Executive Committee) are independent non-executive directors, while
all the members of the Executive Committee are executive directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently comprises 2 executive directors,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and Mr. Chan Yau Wah. The
Executive Committee shall meet as it may consider appropriate.

The duties of the Executive Committee are as follows:

(@) to monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Company;

(b) to discuss and make decisions on matters relating to the
management and operations of the Company;

() to exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
its reqular meetings; and

(d) to review and discuss any other matters as may from time to
time be delegated to it by the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 2 members, both
of them are independent non-executive directors. The members of
the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Kung Fan Cheong (chairman)
and Mr. Leung Man Kay.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.
The attendance record of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out below:

ExgRE9#H)

BREFELZBE(WTZEERINZER
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EXeXEeREHENERBITERY -
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YITZBGANMMERITESER - 253
BIRRIRE (LB RRRESLE - RITRR
ERABEERTEE -

MITREGZBENT
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EE R

Attendance of Remuneration
Committee meeting in 2016

—~NEHE
Name of director EEHSE FHNEEEREE
Kung Fan Cheong (Chairman) LEE (£E) 11
Leung Man Kay P 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
as follows:

(a)

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management'’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management,
which should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration;

to review and sanction new or amended salary, incentive bonus
and retirement benefit policies for the Group which are substantial
in their cost and have an impact on a significant proportion of
employees; and

to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee made recommendations
to the Board on executive directors’ remuneration packages and terms
of employment. The Remuneration Committee also formulated and
evaluated the remuneration policy and structure for the directors and
senior management of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out below:

FMESS(#)

REER - %?M@,\E?ﬁﬂﬂ§$2%?%?m
MEBBERAESTSRLEZ - FHEZE
SR KA E AR Tﬁ%&%%&ai@/\%
2 F BB R R A o

EREEAEHM AR

BEBELEEARTAFEBISEK RBE-Z
*TE—T—ZE =+— B LFEEF AR S
DZERERANBHFHEIIMT

Number of individuals

Remuneration by band 3 i 48 5 #H BB
Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000/8 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0% 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 722,000,000 7T 2

Further particulars regarding directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16
to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 1 executive director,
namely, Mr. Lai Pei Wor (chairman) and 3 independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, Mr. Leung Man Kay and Mr.
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
attendance record of each Nomination Committee member is set
out below:

RiELETRAMSEICATRERREEM
KA REHMER 2 — T FHBHNAF
AL 2 B T R RE8 29

REEES
REZEGEMNAB—BNTES - BIENEL
E(EE)R=ZBBIFATESEK - B
LESRE  RXBERERFRHRLE -

REER  RBREGCHEIT - NEHE - 12
FLRBERKEB ZHFRENT

Attendance of
Nomination Committee
meeting in 2016

—RNFHE
Name of director BEEHS REZEEERRH
Lai Pei Wor (Chairman) FBEEF (FE) 7
Kung Fan Cheong HEE 11
Leung Man Kay RNE 11
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(@) to review the structure, size and diversity (including but not
limited to age, gender, skills, professional and industry experience,
educational background, knowledge and length of service) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman and the chief executive;

(e) to review the board diversity policy, as appropriate and the
measurable objectives that the board has set for implementing
the board diversity policy, and monitor the progress on achieving
the objectives; and

(f) to review the Committee’s terms of reference and its own
effectiveness and recommend to the Board from time to time
any necessary changes.

Board diversity policy has been formulated. In carrying out the
responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, the Committee will give adequate consideration
to the board diversity policy.

The appointment of new directors will be considered and approved
by the Board and all new directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
pursuant to the CG Code.

Mr. Lai Pei Wor and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the next
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to the Company’s
Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2).
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the next forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 27 April 2017 contains detailed
information of the directors standing for re-election.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Company’s auditor, Messrs. Mazars CPA Limited, is set out as follows:

REZES#)

BBV RTZARBARERRFX
SLENRERERCLES -

RRB _ZE—tFMNA -+ B ZBRAS
BEEEEEZHE -

BB BT BN &

BEARFER - KRAEMN TN TZE
ESEEMEBMARARNZHMEMT

Fees paid/payable

HK$

e ENER

Services rendered FriRfit 2 BR 3§ &It
Audit services ZE R 1,020,000
Non-audit services (taxation services) IEZERTS (RS ART) 88,000
1,108,000

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in relation
to the composition of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee of
the Company comprises three independent non-executive directors.
The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Leung Man
Kay, Mr. Kung Fan Cheong and Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Man Kay who has appropriate
accounting professional qualifications. Code Provision C.3.3 stipulates
that members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a
year with the Company’s auditors. During the year, there were two
meetings held between the Audit Committee and the Company’s
auditor. Besides, the Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a
year. During the year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record of each Audit Committee member is set out below:

BEREEE

ARRIRESZZEGZAKD BT EMHR
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BEUIFRITEFANX - BAIEZZBZK
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BERZEEBFELBITMAER - AFE
N BEZZEQERIT-ZRER - BXZXE
SEKBZHFELEDT

Attendance of Audit
Committee meetings in 2016

—E-REHE
Name of director EEpnE EREEEERRH
Leung Man Kay (Chairman) 2XE (F/FE) 3/3
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 3/3
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 3/3

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016




TEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include the
review of the Group’s financial statements and reporting process, risk
management system and internal control procedures. It also acts as
an important link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in
matters within the scope of the group audit. During the meetings held
in 2016, the Audit Committee had performed the following works:

(i) reviewed the directors’ report and audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and consider any significant
or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

(ii) reviewed the interim financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2016;

(iii) reviewed the re-appointment of the external auditor and the
nature and scope of audits;

(iv) reviewed and recommended for approval by the board the 2016
audit scope and fees;

(v) reviewed and monitored the external auditor's independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standard;

(vi) reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system; and

(vii) reviewed the group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The directors also ensure the publication of the
financial statements of the Group is in a timely manner.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 53 to 58.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems
are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, with the assistance of the Audit Committee, has overall
responsibilities for maintaining effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. During the year, the Board
conducted a review of the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, covering financial,
operational, compliance control and risk management functions.
The Group’s system of internal control includes the setting up of a
management structure with limits of authority, and is designed to help
the Group achieve its business objectives, protects its assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensures compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. After reviewing the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, the Board considers that the systems are
effective and adequate for the Group as a whole. The Board further
considers that there was no material issue relating to the Group’s
risk management and internal controls systems including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group and that there were adequate staff with appropriate
and adequate qualifications and experience, resources for accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and adequate training
programmes had been provided during the year.

The internal control team of the Company plays a major role in
monitoring the risk management and internal controls of the Group
and reports directly to the Audit Committee. It has full access to
review all aspects of the Group's activities, risk management and
internal controls. All types of audited reports are circulated to the
Audit Committee and key management, which will follow up on any
actions and measures taken to improve risk management and internal
controls on the recommendations by the internal control team.

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks
by the Group are summarized as follows:

e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

e  Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

e Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

e  Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures
that appropriate internal control processes are in place.

e  Reports the results of risk monitoring to the Audit Committee
and the Board regularly.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal audit
team, which reports directly to the Audit Committee and the Board
on a periodical basis. The team conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans for corrective
actions and control improvement are identified and communicated
with operations management to address any issues, non-compliance
or deficiencies identified. The team monitors the implementation of
its recommendations by the operations management and reports the
outcome to the Audit Committee and the Board.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses
inside information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable
unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
or circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false
or misleading through the omission of a material fact in view of
presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which requires
equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee and Audit Committee and, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees are available to answer
questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2017 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") will be held on 1 June
2017. The notice of AGM will be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the AGM.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.kpihl.com, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance code
and other information are posted and available for public access.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS
Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, member(s) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings, may by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary
of the Company to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition at the expense
of such requisitionist(s). If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The requisition must
specify the purpose of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the head office of the Company in
Hong Kong.

If the requisition is in order, the company secretary will ask the Board
to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered members. On the
contrary, if the requisition is invalid, the members concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM will not be convened
as requested.
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The notice period to be given to all the registered members for
consideration of the proposal raised by the member(s) concerned at
a SGM varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

(@) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not less than ten (10)
clear business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes
a special resolution of the Company, which cannot be amended
other than to a mere clerical amendment to correct a patent
error; and

(b) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less than ten (10) clear
business days’ notice in writing if the proposal constitutes an
ordinary resolution of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings other
than a Proposal for Election of Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s bye-laws,
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and applicable legislation and
regulation.

1. The Company holds an AGM every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a SGM whenever necessary.

2. Member(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of all members having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100 members, can
submit a written request stating the resolution intended to be
moved at the AGM; or a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

3. The written request/statements must be signed by the member(s)
concern and deposited at the Company’s registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei
Muk Road, Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong, for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company, not less than six weeks
before the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one week before the general
meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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4. If the written request is in order, the company secretary will ask
the Board of the Company (i) to include the resolution in the
agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the statement for the
general meeting, provided that the member(s) concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice
of the resolution and/or circulating the statement submitted
by the member(s) concerned in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On the contrary, if
the requisition is invalid or the member(s) concerned have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the member(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not
be included in the agenda for the AGM; or the statement will
not be circulated for the general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to Board

Members who have enquires about the above procedures or have
enquires to put to the Board may write to the company secretary
at Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung,
N.T., Hong Kong.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address: Units 2304-06, 23/F, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road,
Kwai Chung, N.T., Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chairman/Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2481 3098

Email: enquiry@kpihl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law. Shareholders may call the Company at (852) 2276 3000 for any
assistance.

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholder meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholder meeting will be taken by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
the shareholder meeting.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lai Pei Wor, aged 60, is the chairman and managing director of
the Company. Mr. Lai was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996. He is the founder of the Group
and has over 35 years of experience in the industry. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall strategic planning, policy making and financial
management. He has been a director of Hi-Tech Precision Industrial
Limited since 1984, a director of Hideki Electronics Limited since
1989, a director of Cokeen Development Limited and K. S. (China)
Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1990, a director of K & P
Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings Limited since 1997, a
director of E-Dotcom Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China)
Investment Limited and A 78(7 L) & FHBR A 7] since 2002, a director
of Mars Field Limited, a director and legal representative of A L7 &2
WEFAERA A and FEIMEFORYINAF PR A F] since 2010 and acted
as a director of Technology Trends International Limited since 2001
and a secretary since 2009. He has also been appointed as a director
of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of Hunpex
Limited, and a director and legal representative of $RAHZERHR(FII)
BRAA] since 2013.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Chan Yau Wabh, aged 58, is the deputy chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
13 September 1996. He is also a general manager in Hi-Tech Investment
Holdings Limited. Mr. Chan joined the Group in December 1990. He is
responsible for the planning and management in production activities.
He holds a higher diploma in production and industrial engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and a diploma in management studies from
the Hong Kong Management Association. He has over 35 years of
experience in the industry. He has been a director of Hideki Electronics
Limited and K & P Group (Holdings) Limited since 1994, a director of
K. S. (China) Electronics Manufactory Limited since 1995, a director
of Hi-Tech Investment Holdings Limited and Hi-Tech Property Holdings
Limited since 1997, a director of Technology Trends International
Limited since 2001, a director of Hi-Tech (China) Investment Limited
and AP UNEFHERE AT since 2002 and acted as a director of
E-Dotcom Limited since 2009. He has also been appointed as a
director of Sun Ngai Plastic Products Factory Limited, a director of
Hunpex Limited, and a supervisor of $RAH:ZE R CFIINBRR A7 since
2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kung Fan Cheong, aged 62, is a partner in the law firm of Pang,
Kung & Co. and is a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr.
Kung was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 13 September 1996.

Mr. Leung Man Kay, aged 65, is currently a financial and management
consultant. Mr. Leung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 28 September 2004. He has over 32 years’
experience in corporate restructuring, auditing and accounting and
financial management and is currently the managing director of China
Pith Consulting Limited. Mr. Leung was appointed as the chairman of
supervisory committee of Tianjin Motimo Membrane Technology Co.,
Ltd. in February 2011, which was listed on the ChiNext of Shenzhen
Stock Exchange with stock code number 300334 in July 2012, and
retired in November 2013. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, U.K. and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
He is also a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph, aged 64, graduated from State University of
New York at Buffalo in the United States of America and holds a bachelor
of science in business administration degree. Mr. Li was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 24 August
2005. After working in the business sector for nine years, he joined
the Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries in 1985 as an
assistant director and in 1992 he was appointed as a director of the
Secretariat of Federation of Hong Kong Industries from which post he
retired in January 2005. He has over 28 years’ experience in serving the
manufacturing industry of Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Man Kit, aged 57, is the marketing director of precision
parts and components segment of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the
Group in 1984. He is responsible for the marketing and sales. He has
over 33 years of experience in the industry.

Mr. Li Kam Keung, aged 56, is the production manager of the precision
parts and components segment in Kong Hau factory, Zhongshan.
Mr. Li joined the Group in 1985. He is responsible for the operation
and management in production segment. He has over 30 years of
experience in the industry.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of precision parts and components (comprising keypads,
synthetic rubber and plastic components and parts), and the design,
manufacture and sale of consumer electronic products (comprising
time, weather forecasting and other products). There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 59 to 147.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
(2015: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS FOR ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 26
May 2017 to Thursday, 1 June 2017, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 25 May 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The segment of consumer electronic products failed to produce
adequate improvement in performance and recorded losses from the
years ended 31 December 2014 to 2016. Provision for impairment on
segment assets and other costs of approximately HK$13.1 million were
made and incurred in 2016 that comprised of slow-moving inventories,
machines, equipment and decoration as well as staff compensations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

The turnover of the consumer electronic products segment slightly
increased to approximately HK$88.6 million, representing a 1.6%
slightly increase. The operating loss of this segment was increased
to approximately HK$21.2 million (2015: HK$11.3 million) included
the provision as mentioned above. If the provision was excluded, the
operating loss of this segment will be decreased to approximately
HK$8.1 million, representing a 27.9% decrease, after streamlining
the operation since the beginning of 2016.

The turnover of the precision parts and components segment amounted
to approximately HK$342.4 million, which slightly decreased by 0.6%.
Benefited from the increasing demand of the newly established
customers and launching new products in the second half of 2016, the
operating profit in this segment increased to approximately HK$16.3
million (2015: HK$14.2 million), which the operating results for the
second half of 2016 had improved as compared with the first half of
2016 as well as the second half of 2015.

If excluded the above-mentioned provision of approximately HK$13.1
million made this year, the Group’s profit for the year increased to
approximately HK$5.0 million (2015: HK$0.2 million). The selling
and distribution costs increased by 2.3% to approximately HK$35.4
million and administrative and other expenses increased by 3.8% to
approximately HK$36.4 million. The finance costs decreased by 7.2%
to approximately HK$1.7 million due to the decrease in financing
activities.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group turnover for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to approximately HK$431.0 million, representing a 0.2% decrease
from the previous year. Overall gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$52.6 million this year, representing a 13.3% decrease from the
previous year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$8.1 million (2015: profit HK$0.2 million).

Basic loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK3.04 cents
(2015: earnings HKO0.06 cent) per share.
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Report of the Directors

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. We also require factories
operate in compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from
the relevant Chinese regulators. Emails and electronic messages have
replaced letters for most formal and informal communications, both
externally and internally. Further details are set out on environmental,
social and governance report on pages 39 to 52 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange.
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Bermuda. During the year ended 31 December 2016, we have
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Bermuda.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonable
remunerated and also continues to improve and regularly review and
update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
customers. Customers are encouraged to make recommendations
with the aim of improving products quality. The Group is in good
relationship with its suppliers and conducts a fair and strict appraisal
of its suppliers on an annual basis.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
commercial, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget
at the end of each financial year based on their knowledge to the
external environments and a number of forecast and estimates. Given
the change of unforeseeable external environments in the industry, the
Group is facing significant strategic risks on its capital expenditures
and working capital requirements when changing the strategic plans
to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Commercial risks

The Group is facing keen competition by other competitors. To
maintain the Group's competitiveness, the management uses cost
leadership strategy as well as diversifying its business strategy to
tackle other competitors.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting
from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 36 to consolidated
financial statements heading “Financial risk management objectives
and policies”.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements, is set out on page 148. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the financial
statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, amounted to HK$27,559,019 (2015: HK$27,465,178) of
which nil has been proposed as final dividend for the year (2015: Nil).
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not paid
final dividend for 2015. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$50,856,881 (2015: HK$50,856,881)
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAIJOR SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the five largest customers accounted
for 25.4% of the total sales of the Group for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 9.7 %. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for 24.4% of the total purchases
of the Group for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 8.1%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors

Lai Pei Wor
Chan Yau Wah

Independent non-executive directors

Kung Fan Cheong
Leung Man Kay
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph

In accordance with bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
bye-laws, Messrs. Lai Pei Wor and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph shall retire
by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting.

Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Leung Man Kay and Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph,
the independent non-executive directors, are appointed for a period
of two years. The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Messrs. Kung Fan Cheong, Leung Man Kay and
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 25 to 27 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2015, and the contract can be terminated by either party giving to
the other not less than six months’ nor more than seven months’
prior notice in writing.

Apart from foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
next forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board of the
Company with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significant in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EQUITY - LINKED AGREEMENT

2012 share option scheme was adopted for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors and eligible employees of the
Company. No share options were granted, forfeited, cancelled or
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2016. Further details
of the share option scheme are disclosed in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the directors in the share
capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were
as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FsROHE - FORERMEE

Percentage of

Directly Founder of a the Company’s

beneficially discretionary issued share

owned trust Total capital

PR VEEINCIEE T

Name of director BEEHE BEEEH#ES -IE N B BHzBE DL

Lai Pei Wor FBEEFN 17,622,000 *97,242,000 114,864,000 43.02

Chan Yau Wah PR ZE 7,700,000 - 7,700,000 2.88

25,322,000 97,242,000 122,564,000 45.90

Note: Mz -

* Details of Mr. Lai Pei Wor’s interests are set out in the section headed * FEEMESE 2 HESFHRTITXZ[TERE R

“Substantial shareholders’ and other persons’ interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 29 to the financial statements, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as was known to director or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons or corporations
(other than directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
were as follows:

Long positions:
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rRAE:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FEROEE - SOREREE

Percentage

Through of the

Directly spouse or Company’s

beneficially minor Beneficiary issued

owned children of a trust Total  share capital

YN

B [EEN BETRA

Name "% EREEA ARETZ  EREZRHA o6 BAL

Chan Yuk Lin (Note a) BEE (Mita) - 17,622,000 97,242,000 114,864,000 43.02

Celaya (PTC) Limited (Note b)  Celaya (PTC)Limited (Hi{zEb) - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42

Trident Corporate Services Trident Corporate Services - - 97,242,000 97,242,000 36.42
(B.V1.) Limited (Note ¢) (B.VL) Limited (FifzEc)

Lai Yiu Chun (Note d) WBEE (M:d) 1,198,000 21,450,000 - 22,648,000 8.48

Lam Lin Chu (Note d) mER (Fid) 22,434,000 214,000 - 22,648,000 8.48
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SUBSTANTIALSHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERPERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Chan Yuk Lin, spouse of Mr. Lai Pei Wor, was deemed to be interested
in the shares.

(b)  Celaya (PTC) Limited holds 97,242,000 shares in its capacity as trustee of The
Lai Family Unit Trust, of which all units are held by Trident Corporate Services
(B.V.I.) Limited in its capacity as trustee of The Lai Family Trust, a discretionary
trust of which the spouse and issue of Mr. Lai Pei Wor are discretionary objects.

(c)  The shares referred to herein relate to the same parcel of shares referred to
in note (b) above.

(d)  Ms. Lam Lin Chu is the wife of Mr. Lai Yiu Chun, who is a brother of Mr. Lai
Pei Wor. Both Ms. Lam Lin Chu and Mr. Lai Yiu Chun are declaring interests
in the same parcel of shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year, which constitute exempted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under the Main Board Listing
Rules, are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

No permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year, or is
in force at the date of this report, for the benefit of a then director
or a director of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or a then director or a director of its subsidiary (if made
by the Company). The Company has arranged appropriate directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Group.

AUDITORS

Mazars CPA Limited will retire as auditor of the Company at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and a
resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at such annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lai Pei Wor
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

I. PREAMBLE

The Board believes that a sound environmental, social and governance
structure is vital for continued sustainability and development of the
Group's activities. In addition to business growth, the Group has been
pursuing excellence in environmental protection, social responsibility,
and governance areas. Meanwhile, the Group also wishes to enhance
its transparency to achieve and uplift the sense of social caring and
responsibility amongst various stakeholders including shareholders
and investors, employees, customers, suppliers, government and
regulators, the environment and the community. With reference to its
own experience and practice, the Group primarily adopts the principles
and basis of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules as its standards, with an
aim to establish a sound environment, social and governance structure.

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report is a review
of its performance in environment, social and governance areas. This
report is designed to allow shareholders, investors (including potential
investors) and the public to have a more comprehensive and profound
understanding of the Group’s corporate governance and culture.

Il. REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This ESG report covers the operational boundaries including the
activities of the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong and several
operating subsidiaries in mainland China. The reporting period of
this ESG report is for the financial year 2016, from 1 January 2016
to 31 December 2016, unless specially stated otherwise.

lll. STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group acknowledges the need and importance of the stakeholder
engagement as one of the key elements in ESG reporting. The Group is
also committed to achieving a high standard of ESG that can properly
promote the Group’s reputation as a caring and responsible company
to enhance corporate value and accountability of the company.

To conduct the first materiality assessment in identifying and
understanding the main concerns and material interests to stakeholders
in this ESG report, the Group has engaged with its stakeholders in
a specific survey. Stakeholders are selected based on stakeholder
influence and stakeholder dependence on the Group. Stakeholders
with high influence and high dependence on the Group are selected
by the management of the Group. The selected stakeholders have
been invited to express their views and concerns on major social and
environment issues.
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After assessing the feedback from internal and external stakeholders
through an online survey, The Group has viewed its sustainability strategies,
practices and measures undertaken in 2016 and highlighted material before
preparing this report so as to align with the stakeholders’ expectations.

IV. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group attaches great importance to corporate environmental
and social responsibility. Based on ISO14001 and relevant laws and
regulations, the Group has established and implemented environmental
management system in order to reinforce environment management
and improve environmental performance level. In strict compliance
with relevant environmental regulations, the Group proactively
shoulders environmental responsibility by advancing technological
innovations, enhancing resource utilisation efficiency and promoting
energy conservation and emission reduction in its production and
development, to explore approaches that featuring low consumption,
low emission and high output.

This section will primarily disclose the information on use of resources,
carbon emissions and environmental and natural resources with the
relevant Key Performance Indicators of the Group during the financial
year of 2016.

A.1.Emissions

The Group adamantly implements government laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. The Group’s current environmental
protection system is sound. Each of the manufacturing bases has set up
an environment management system; and each of the manufacturing
bases has responsible staff in charge of operation of environmental
protection and energy saving facilities.

The Group is principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
precision parts and components, and design manufacture and sale of
consumer electronic products. The emission mainly comprises domestic
wastewater, solid waste, Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) emissions and
noise. The Group has appealed the staff to save water and electricity
in the daily operation; it has also taken initiatives for full recycling of
waste materials to reduce unnecessary waste produced therefore to
minimise the environmental impact. The specific emissions are reported
respectively as below:
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A. Wastewater Produced

Wastewater produced of the Group mainly generated from the general
operation of the four factories (spraying, air compressor operation
etc.) and daily use from its staff in office, staff canteen and dormitory.
Through precise calculation based on the water bills, the total amount
of domestic wastewater produced from the Group during financial
year 2016 is about 151,825m3.The quality of drained wastewater
must meet the requirements of the country and the district. Domestic
wastewater is discharged to the sewage pipe directly, while industrial
wastewater is collected separately in special containers for further
treatment. For example, the engine oil and chemicals are separated
from the wastewater, and the wastewater generated from spraying
will be collected and treated by the suppliers as the contract stipulates.
Furthermore, two factories in Mainland China has built sequencing
batch reactor in the operation site to treat wastewater generated there
by biological method. The treated water can meet the requirement
of the Guangdong local standard “the Discharge Limits of Water
Pollutants” DB44/26-2001 the First-class standard during the second
time period. For the domestic wastewater, the Group has taken various
measures in reducing water consumption (which will be explained
particularly in A.2) and improving the efficiency including the following
practices:

1. Add chemicals which can decompose ink in the pool for spraying
units so that the ink is easy to dissolve, agglomerate and be
removed from the pool. Thus, water in the pool can be recycled
for many times.

2. Recirculating cooling water system is applied in the injection
molding unit.

3. Sanitary wastewater generated in the staff canteen is drained
through the grilling to remove oil and residues, while rice washing
water and leftovers will be collected and reused by livestock farm.

B. Solid Waste Produced

Due to the nature of the business, solid waste produced by the Group
are divided into general waste and hazardous waste. General solid
waste includes the following categories:

1. General waste generated from the offices, like papers, correction
fluid, folders, staples, paper clips, adhesive tape, bottles, stamp
pads, seals and pens
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2. Domestic waste generated from canteen and dormitory, like
abandoned broom, mop, cleaning tools, wire skin, industrial
residues, waste plates, plastic bottles, seasoning bottles, residues
and leftovers

3. Non-hazardous industrial waste like cutting pliers, blades, parts
and accessories, network lines, filters, cloth (not stained with
oil), and construction waste

General solid waste is weighed and recorded daily and collected by
local Bureau for Environmental Health. Hazardous waste is collected
on the basis of its phase, namely whether it is liquid, solid or stored
in a container. The hazardous waste includes the following items:
modulator tube, activated carbon, engine oil, ink, paint sludge, cloth,
ink bucket, battery, and bananaoil bucket. Hazardous waste is collected
according to the Solid Waste Classification Table and sealed in specific
containers. Staff from the Administration Department will check all
hazardous waste container every day and contact hazardous waste
transportation and management company to recycle those containers.

C. GHGs Emissions

To mitigate the GHGs emissions, the Group understands well that to
make more efficient use of electricity will directly reduce the amount
of GHGs emissions, the detailed measurements taken by the Group
and the relevant achievement are described further in Aspect A.2.
Use of Resources. To indirectly mitigate the GHGs, the Group had
also taken some methods, such as to choose more environmental
friendly paper supplier, to save the amount of paper consumed and
fresh water consumed by its staff.
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Above all, the Group has installed a set of photo electric oxidation
and catalysis devices to treat the organic exhaust gas generated
from the operation sites. The hazardous gas will be blown through
activated carbon before emission so that the dust and large chemical
particles will be absorbed by the activated carbon. The quality of the
gas emission meet the second-grade standard for the second time
frame of the Guangdong Standard for Emission Limits of Air Pollutants
(DB44/27-2001).

To evaluate the quality of the exhaust gas, the Group has authorised
the Centre Testing International Group Co., Ltd in Shenzhen to conduct
the exhaust gas monitoring. The amount of Nonmethanehydrocarbon
(NMHC), benzene, methylbenzene and dimethylbenzene and the
accordingly emission standard (DB44/27-2001) are concluded as below:

Table1 Comparison between the observed value and emission
limit of exhaust gas
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Item NMHC Benzene Methylbenzene Dimethylbenzene
L] FRFAR S LS RR
Concentration Emission ~ Concentration Emission  Concentration Emission ~ Concentration Emission
Parameter (mg/m3)  velocity (kg/h) (mg/m3)  velocity (kg/h) (mg/m3)  velocity (kg/h) (mg/m3)  velocity (kg/h)
RE HHRE RE HHEE RE HHEE RE HHRE
24 (25/1h%) (T5/B) (B5/I5%) (T5/B) (B5/I5%) (T5/B) (B5/I5%) (fr/®)
Average observed value 1,046 000525  NDFEHH - 0014 534105 NDRMRAH -
TENE <Note 1>
<>
Emission limit 120 12 12 059 40 36 70 12
HHRE

Note 1. N.D= not detected, means the observed value is below the detection limit.

D. Noise

The Group has conducted noise detection around the operation site.
At one meter away around the factory boundary, the sound pressure
of the noise is around 57dB (A) during daytime and 48 dB (A) during
night. According to the PRC Emission Standard for Industrial Enterprise
Noise at Boundary (GB 12348-2008), the emission standard for the
third grade is 65 dB (A) during daytime and 55dB (A) during night. The
testing result shows that the noise emission has met the requirement
of the standard. On the other hand, the Group never received any
complaints from residence around since the Group has attached great
importance to the emissions.
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A.2. Use of Resources
A. Electricity Consumption

The total electricity consumption of the Group was amount to
19,982MWh in the financial year of 2016. All of its electricity
consumption is directly coming from the lighting, air-conditioners,
computers and other electricity consuming equipment in the office,
and the regular operation of the machines in the operation site. The
electricity supplier is the CLP Power Hong Kong Limited and the China
Southern Power Grid Company Limited.

To ensure the effective use of electricity and reduce the electricity
consumption, several practices were applied by the Group during the
financial year of 2016, including the following:

In the offices:

e Turn office lights off whenever and wherever not necessary;
replace traditional lamps with power saving ones like LED lights;

e Adjust the air-conditioners according to the real temperature in
the office, and turning them off whenever not necessary.

In the factories:

e Replace high electricity consumption lamps with the installation
of electricity saving lamps for office lighting;

e Turn off machines that are not in operation to avoid idling;
e Make careful selection of the transformer capacity and motors;

e Arrange the operation of machines reasonably and repair them
once there is malfunction;

e Replace old equipment to improve the electricity utilisation
efficiency;

e Improve the operation procedure by replacing the spraying
production line, ovens and refrigeration equipment with more
efficient ones.
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B.  Water Consumption

Water consumption by the Group includes domestic use and industrial
use. The consumption of water in 2016 is 152,854m3.To reduce water
consumption, the Group has conducted the following practice in 2016:

e Adopt low-flow faucets or showers in the office and staff living
areas. Once there is a leaking problem, the Group will send a
plumber immediately;

e  Try to recycle domestic water in the daily practice;

e Some factories set a utilisation limit of water for the employees
and charge them for extra water bill;

e  Get employees involved in the business’s green efforts. Trained
them about the Group’s environmental policy”Compliance
with laws and regulations, energy saving, Full participation and
Continuous improvement”;

C.  Paper Consumption

To ensure environmental and efficient use of paper, the office and
the Group have made great efforts from the “starting point” to the
“end point”. The “starting point” means to indirectly reduce the
paper consumption without the office physical boundary. In other
words, to choose the more environmental friendly paper source as
the supplier, through which to indirectly reduce the amount of trees
loss while producing the same amount of paper; to choose recycled
paper instead of normal paper to reduce natural resources loss in
some cases. The “end point” means to directly reduce the amount
of paper consumption through varies measurements within the office
physical boundary. The office and the Group have also endeavoured
to take several methods to manage the paper consumption described
as below:

To “think before print”: use posters and stickers as the reminder
for office staff;

e To use both side: set computer defaults to print double-sided
when possible;

e  Give a second chance: use paper printed on only one-side for
draft documents or as scratch paper;

e E-mail tips: to remind staff consider the environment before
printing the email;

e GO electronic: to create some electronic systems to eliminate
unnecessary paper forms.
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D. Packaging Material

The main packaging materials consumed by the Group are cartons
in different sizes. The consumption of packaging materials is made-
to-order basis, thus there is no specific measures to reduce the
consumption.

A.3. The Environment and Natural Resources

In relation to the operation site, the Group is in strict compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations and conducts regularly inspecting
and monitoring on the regular operation of the Group. As for the
environmental impacts from operation process, the Group’s routine
operation exerts no bad influence on its surroundings. According to
the inspection results, the wastes, noise and other environmental
impacts generated from the operation process of the Group are in
conformity with environmental laws and regulations.

The Group will continue to adhere to the safety, harmony and green
development concept and make unremitting efforts to create a
resourcing-saving and environmentally-friendly corporate.

V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group persisted in the combination of a people-oriented
management philosophy and an innovation mechanism. Through
diversity and humanistic management, the Group has established a
close relationship of mutual trust and support between the Group
and its staff, and created a positive, healthy and motivated corporate
culture and work environment for its employees. Meanwhile, the
Group also incessantly optimized its human resources structure,
and improved its management methods in order to fully bring out
employees’ enthusiasm and initiatives.

B.1. Employment

The Group embraces the talent concept of “To Let everybody fully
display his talents and make the best use of everything”, seeking to
provide a safe and sound working environment for employees and
cultivating talents experienced in technology and management.

Human resources policies strictly adhere to the applicable employment
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the Mainland China, including,
the Employment Ordinance, Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance, Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, and the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC. Human Resources Department regularly
reviews and updates relevant company policies in accordance with
the latest laws and regulations.
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Talent acquisition and retention is vital to business future development.
To motivate and reward employees, the Group offers competitive and
fair remuneration and benefits based on individuals’ performance,
professional qualifications and experiences. The Group also makes
reference to market benchmarks. Besides all the regular practices,
the Group provides accommodation for its staff in some of the
factories. The Group conducts annual review to ensure that its staff
are recognised by the Group appropriately with regard to their working
efforts and contributions. Meanwhile, any termination of employment
contract would be based on reasonable and lawful grounds.

The Group determines reasonable working hours and leave for our
employees which are in line with local employment laws. In addition
to statutory holidays stipulated by the region such as the basic
paid annual leave, employees may also be entitled to sick leave,
maternity leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave with paid as
long as related documents are provided under the employment law
of the local government. The Group has staff canteen, dormitory and
entertainment facility near the factories and provides the employees
with a free physical examination. On some traditional Chinese festivals,
the Group will give out allowance and gifts to the employees. The
Group provides lunch allowance to employees in manufacturing plant
as well.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed to create
a fair, respectful and diverse working environment by promoting anti-
discrimination and equal opportunity in terms of all human resources
and employment decisions, for instance, training and promotion
opportunities, dismissals and retirement policies irrespective of their
gender, race, age, disability, family status, marital status, sexual
orientation, religion beliefs, nationality or any other non-job related
factors in all business units. Equal opportunities policy enforces zero
tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment or victimisation
in accordance to relevant government legislation, ordinances and
regulations, such as Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Regulations
Concerning the Labour Protection of Female Staff and Workers and
Law of the PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women.
Disciplinary actions would be taken against any employee if there
is any non-compliance or breach of legislation related to the equal
opportunities policies.

In 2016, the Group hosted a series of activities for its employees,
including as ports meet, annual dinner, and the Mid-autumn Festival
party. These events helped our employees to relieve stress, and served
to exemplify the Group’s corporate culture of the spirit of solidarity
and cohesion among its employees.
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B.2. Health and Safety

To provide and maintain good working condition and a safe and healthy
working environment, the Group's safety and health policies are in line
with various laws and regulations stipulated by the Government of
Hong Kong and Mainland China, including the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance, the Production Safety Laws of the PRC, the People’s
Republic of China Occupation Disease Prevention Law and Regulation
on Work-Related Injury Insurance. Besides, the Group has formulated
inner Stipulation of Management of Employee’s Occupational Health
and Safety and Emergency Rescue System specially for employees in
the operation site.

The Group sets stringent safety and labour practice standards to
minimise the risk of accidents and enhance the employees’ health
and safety awareness. The Group implements occupational health
system by providing physical examination for employees every year,
especially occupational diseases examination for those exposed to
dust, toxic and hazardous materials. The Company provides work
injury insurance for relevant employees in case of any accidents
happened during working hours or on the way between home and
office. Relevant employees on the operation site are required to be
trained on emergency management, hazardous materials handling,
machine safeguarding and occupational health and safety courses.
In 2016, the Group has conducted emergency response drill, safety
inspections, cleaning of the air-conditioning systems, and disinfection
treatment of carpets. Besides, the Group has organised healthy work
bulletin, build up safety warning signs, set up safety banners and
slogans, prohibited smoking and drinking liquor in workplace. The
Group implements the above policies in the operation site at least
twice per year and arranges specific department to monitor the policy
and practice around the clock. During the operation process, to ensure
the health and safety of the employees, the Group will provide various
labour protection products, such as anti-poison respirator, anti-dust
respirator, earplugs, earmuffs, goggles, safety shoes, etc. and urges
relevant employees to use them.

B.3. Development and Training

The Group attaches great importance to the improvement of staff
quality and their relevant expertise, and works out training programs in
a scientific manner for the employees of each position based on their
business needs. In 2016, training activities provided by the Company
to employees include:

. In-service and transferred staff skills training;
e  Professional job skills enhancement and technical backbone staff
training;
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e  Learning exchange opportunities like training seminars organised
by professionals;

e  Scheduled and focused year-round comprehensive skills training
for management staff of high and middle level

B.4. Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC, Prohibition
of Child Labour of the Mainland China and other related labour laws
and regulations in Hong Kong and China to prohibits any child and
forced labour employment.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour, underage
workers and forced labour, prior the confirmation of employment,
human resources staff specifies that all employees shall provide a
valid identity documents to ensure that the applicants are lawfully
employable and a grievance reporting mechanism has been established
by Human Resources Department to monitor and ensure compliance
of latest and relevant laws and regulations that prohibits child labour
and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5. Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital to maintain
and manage a sustainable and reliable supply chain. The Group
achieves this goal by conducting comprehensive evaluation of
potential suppliers and thorough investigations of selected suppliers,
imposing strict standards on the quality of suppliers’ raw materials
and services, and reviewing the suppliers’ products, services, previous
track record, ongoing projects, reputation, quality and their social and
environmental responsibility annually so as to maintain a good and
long-term relationship with suppliers.

Due to the nature of the business, the main raw materials that the
Group purchased are plastic, electronic optical devices, hardware,
packaging materials. The Group has stipulated internal regulations for
purchasing and selection of suppliers based on I1SO9001. Generally,
the Group chooses suppliers according to the requirements of the
specific business and customers and the environmental and social
risks. Selection criteria is listed as below:

e The suppliers must hold legal business license;

e The product quality of the suppliers must be high-class;
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e  The products of the suppliers must be environmentally friendly
and pollution-free, which should be healthy and safe to the
employees and the customers.

The Group will arrange regular visit and communication with the
suppliers to keep informed of the latest business situation of the
suppliers. The Purchase Department is in charge of the evaluation of
the suppliers in the following four aspects: regulatory compliance,
rights of the employees, health and safety, and environment protection.
The products provided by the suppliers must conform to related
environmental protection regulations and safety regulations.

To ensure sufficient supply, the Purchasing Department will keep close
contact with the suppliers and reserve products in advance. Besides,
the company usually has backup suppliers. The suppliers are usually
reliable after long-term cooperation and the Group enters into supply
contacts with product suppliers based on the projects and needs.
The Group will conduct annual evaluation upon contracts in top
management turnover, production capacity, changes in manufacturing
techniques and raw materials, and violations of the law and discipline
of the suppliers.

B.6. Product Responsibility

The philosophy of the products and service of the Group is to
make quick response to the need of the customers by upholding
“Improve constantly, Strive for excellence, Customer comes first,
Advance with the times” .With regard to the quality and safety of
the Group’s product and service, the Group is in line with the rules
and regulations stipulated by the EU including the Registration,
Evaluation, Authorisation, and Restriction of Chemicals and Restriction
of Hazardous Substances. Some of products sold within the European
Economic Area must meet the requirements of the applicable EC
directives in order to obtain the CE marking. Moreover, the Group has
stipulated strict management program to supervise the raw material
check, manufacturing procedure, products storage procedure, quality
control and final quality check procedure.

The Group abides by both the 1SO9001 and internal management
program of clients’ complaints to deal with products and services
complaints. After the Quality Control (“QC") Department receives
complaints, they will confirm and analyse the complaints with relevant
departments. Once confirming the complaints, the QC Department will
work out specific solutions and response relevant clients in at most
six days and record the complaints. The fact that the Group attaches
great importance to the complaints strengthens its product offerings
and service quality, and consequently enables us to stay competitive
in the market.
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The Group has stimulated specific programs for the recall procedures,
including the “Control Procedure of Nonconforming Products” and
“Control Procedure of Returned Products”. Once the Group receives
returned products, it will conduct a detailed inspection. If the case
is confirmed, the Group will take full responsibility and recall all the
unqualified products.

The Group has closely monitored its released marketing materials and
product labelling to prevent inappropriate or exaggerated advertisement
which comply with Advertising Law of the PRC and related laws and
regulations. If there is any noncompliance with internal guideline,
the Group would carry out corrective action immediately. In addition,
its internal guidelines have been regularly updated with the latest
regulations released by the government.

The Group is committed in abiding by the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and Consumer Council Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law
of the People‘s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests to ensure customers’ rights are strictly protected. All
collected personal data is treated confidentially and is kept securely,
accessible by designated personnel only. During the reporting year,
there were no substantiated complaints received concerning breaches
of customer privacy and losses of customer data.

B.7. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, integrity and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the laws and regulations
relating to anti-corruption and bribery as set out by the government
of the Mainland China and Hong Kong, such as: Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Anti-money Laundering, Article 274th of the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China (on extortion and
fraud), Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, and Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance, etc.

All employees are expected to discharge their duties with integrity and
self-disciplined, and they are required abstaining from engaging in any
activities related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
which might affect their business decision or independent judgment in
the course of business operation which exploit their positions against
the Group's interests.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The management would conduct investigations against any suspicious
or illegal behaviour which are related to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money-laundering to protect the Group’s interests. Corresponding
assessment, consulting, investigation and punishment internal
procedures are introduced in the Group. Furthermore, the Group
has set up advice box and hotline to enable employees or outsiders
to report any suspicious activities including any requesting, receiving
or accepting any forms of benefits from any persons, companies
or organisations having conflict of interest with the Group and
misconduct behaviours.

The Group advocates a confidentiality mechanism to protect the
whistle-blowers. It is Group’s policy to make every effort treating
all disclosures in a confidential and sensitive manner after employee
reports concern about any of the above matters. The identity of
the individual employee making the allegation will not be divulged
without the employee’s consent. However, there may be circumstances
in which the Company may be required or legally obliged to reveal
the employee’s identity, for example, where an investigation leads
to legal proceedings being initiated. If this is the case, the Company
will take all reasonable steps to ensure that the employee suffers no
detriment. Harassment or victimisation of a genuine whistle blower
will be treated as gross misconduct, which if proven, may result in
dismissal. During 2016, there was no report of corruption-related
activities received within the Group.

COMMUNITY
B.8. Community Investment

As a global corporate citizen, the Group strives to improve society
through community investment. Over the years, it actively carried
out corporate social responsibilities and has been participating in
various charity activities. Among all aspects, the Group especially cares
about education, environmental protection and reconstruction of the
disaster-affected area. Apart from making cash donations to charitable
organisations, both management and employees of the Group have
been eager to take their own initiatives in helping and supporting the
local communities and neighbours.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MAZARS

To the shareholders of K & P International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of K & P
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Mazars CPA LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters

REEITER

FRRBFHERERMNEXAE - BB
%K%ﬁé%%ﬁ%%%ﬂ?%é%%%
c REFHERRMIETERE VTR
%&ﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁﬁ mEMATEHZES
HEHBVHNER - RIEEE TEER
ARERPINREEENFRESFSER -

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our auditor’s report.

Key Audit Matter
HMRETER

Impairment on property, plant and equipment of
consumer electronic products segment

BEFHEGDBZYE  BERREZHRE

Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
AR A RN 13

As at 31 December 2016, an impairment loss of HK$4,835,785
was made to write the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment in a segment down to HK$151,292.
RZBE-—RETZH=1+—8 BH—28E2Y% &K
B KR 1R (&5 184,835,785 7T - i EBREEMRZE
151,292/ 7T °

Value-in-use and market price less cost to sell of the segment to
which the property, plant and equipment belong were estimated
and compared in order to determine the recoverable amount
of the assets. In estimating the value-in-use of the segment, a
5 year discounted cash flow forecast in respect of the segment
had been prepared by the management. Significant estimation
and judgement are required by management to determine
the recoverable amount of the segment’s property, plant and
equipment, including the determination of key assumptions
and the selection of different inputs of the calculations.

EEtk DBz E  BEARB2EREEETISER
WMIHERN AL L - KMETHEEZ AN EHE -
ERECREEN DB AFFIRIRE RS T8 AL
STEHREDBEZEREE - EBEREHERMGT KA

ETABEERU DB YR - BB R& ﬁZTW@%%”
RETHBRRRIEETRABMABBZTE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ETNAEERRENSE

Our key procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
included:

BAAIEIRERH A ATE L RIS A2 FF 245

— Assessing the methodology used to prepare the 5 year
discounted cash flow forecast;

HEREAFIRASREBRARAB A

— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and market; and
R APIE G RIS ANB AR RROEGIRIER
HEE &

— Considering the relevance and reasonableness of key
assumptions and methods used, and the relevance and
accuracy of the source data used.
ZRZEARBROBENREEN - RANTERM
FRERIR A A8 R M BRI o
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key Audit Matter
BARETBR

Valuation of land and buildings

ITHREFZI1GE

Refer to notes 13 to the consolidated financial statements
BREG A BRENF13

As at 31 December 2016, land and buildings held by the
Group in the mainland China were stated at fair value of
HK$64,996,000. Significant estimation and judgement are
required by management to determine the fair value of the
land and buildings, including the determination of valuation
technigues and the selection of different inputs in the models.
Management has engaged independent professionally qualified
valuers (the “Valuers”) whose work has been relied on in the
estimation of the fair value of the land and buildings.
RZZE—RNFTZA=1+—08 ' ESEFEURFER
BE 2+t R F AR FE AR 564,996,000 T &
BEZELHERMG G EETEGETERER
FRBABIEZ BANEF U LW RETFT 2 ATFEE -
ERECIINEBUAEREXRMEM([EERM]) - XHF
BETER G RIEFZ AFEE -

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BRETEEA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMHEANAEEBRENSE

Our key audit procedures over valuation of properties
included:

BT RS ERMELBREIZF 213 -

— Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuers; and

AHEEERMBBE - N REEE R

— Assessing the appropriateness of the work of the Valuers
by making enquiries and considering the relevance and
reasonableness of key assumptions and methods used,
and the relevance and accuracy of the source data used.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGES WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF ZE MR BRI RRAIEN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BEE#E)

(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional VEABIEEAETEREITESEAR I8 -
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  FRFEEREEHE - FREREERAEE - &
We also: 7R -

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (ontinued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charge with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charges with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2017

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Or Ming Chiu

Practising Certificate number: P04786
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Consolidated Income Statement

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=T—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-RF
Notes HK$ HK$
BicE BT BIT
REVENUE PN 5 431,017,389 431,756,667
Cost of sales SEE AR (378,419,345) (371,068,152)
Gross profit EF 52,598,044 60,688,515
Other income and gains HbWA Rz 5 12,564,077 10,976,365
Selling and distribution costs $HE AR SHA AR (35,361,815) (34,576,612)
Administrative and other expenses THEEMER (36,427,010) (35,078,662)
Finance costs BEKA 6 (1,675,059) (1,804,670)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AT (E1E) R F 7 (8,301,763) 204,936
Income tax credit/(expense) e e,/ (F%) 10 191,614 (50,822)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KARER AFTL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS REE(FE)/BF
OF THE COMPANY (8,110,149) 154,114
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE KD TEE AT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS BR(EE) BT
OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic AR HK(3.04) cents &1l HK0.06 cent /&1Ll
Diluted E HK(3.04) cents &4l HK0.06 cent 7l

BEHEERZERARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE(FE)BR (8,110,149) 154,114
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hi 2 E g8
Items that will not be reclassified to BrREEHs EUEZ AR
profit or loss: ZIER
Surplus arising from revaluation of Tt RIEF 2 BiHE
land and buildings 12,190,768 5,820,648
Income tax effect gt (4,441,346) (582,672)
7,749,422 5,237,976
Items that may be reclassified HEBnEHoBUBEAR
subsequently to profit or loss: 2B
Exchange differences on translation of BEFINETRREL 2
foreign operations PE 5 =58 (12,727,767) (6,137,548)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS BRBERAFEFEEMEZHEER
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (4,978,345) (899,572)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS BRAREEAFMEREE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZHEBRAE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (13,088,494) (745,458)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=B—ARF+=A=+—8
At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz - ENERE 13 195,460,747 210,287,742
Prepaid land lease payments TER A ER 14 11,269,694 12,335,607
Other intangible assets Hibhmp & iz = -
Available-for-sale financial AIHHESRIRE
investment 17 680,000 680,000
Prepaid rent AR S 18 = 155,550
Total non-current assets ERBNE E MG 207,410,441 223,458,899
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories 7E 19 60,358,767 65,009,896
Prepayments, deposits and TBRHIE - Ze R
other receivables H At FEUFRIE 20 9,977,939 9,643,532
Trade and bills receivables FEURBRITE R EE 21 76,658,999 74,509,281
Cash and cash equivalents B RIBESEER 22 24,384,156 26,303,950
Total current assets BN E AR 171,379,861 175,466,659
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade payables FERTERIE 23 46,443,046 45,751,871
Accrued liabilities and et B E R E b FIE
other payables 24 42,490,503 52,220,561
Interest-bearing bank and mERITREMER
other borrowings 25 36,399,168 28,640,910
Tax payable JE #7518 119,426 2,578,712
Total current liabilities B EABRT 125,452,143 129,192,054
NET CURRENT ASSETS TENEEFE 45,927,718 46,274,605
TOTAL ASSETS LESS REERRBARS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 253,338,159 269,733,504

BEHEERZERARAA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continueq)

R=ZB—A"F+=-A=t—H
At 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5E BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and T ERITREMEER
other borrowings 25 5,894,556 13,706,022
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIAE & 27 14,382,611 9,877,996
Total non-current liabilities MBI B EEG 20,277,167 23,584,018
Net assets BEFE 233,060,992 246,149,486
EQUITY xR
Issued capital B EITRA 28 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves E 30(a) 206,360,512 219,449,006
Total equity T B RE 233,060,992 246,149,486

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 EFEENR_T—tF=A-+N\BH#HER

March 2017 and signed on its behalf by RERM - WHTIATRERES
Lai Pei Wor Chan Yau Wah
R R
Director Director
EE E2

K & P International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

Share Asset  Exchange
Issued  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation ~ Retained  Proposed Total
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
BE EX
BEARE ROEER HABR  EfRE  RBRE REEN RBERE  ER4E
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS
B BT B B A BT BT B
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~EF-A-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 53,554,000 6,288,340 108,089,074 - 246,149,486
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (8,110,149) - (8,110,149)
Other comprehensive loss FEREMZASE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERNERE
translation of foreign EX/ELER
operations - - - - (12,721,767) - - (12,721,767)
Surplus arising from revaluation Bt L RET 2
of land and buildings, EfRER
net of tax - - - 1749422 - - - 1749422
Total comprehensive loss TREEFREE
for the year - - - 7749422 (12,727,767) (8,110,149) - (13,088,494)
At 31 December 2016 RZF-AF
+ZA=t-H 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *61,303,482 *(6,439,427) *99,978,925 - 233,060,992

BEERERERAR
—E-AEEH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ontinued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

Share Asset  Exchange
Issied ~ premium Contributed ~ revaluation  fluctuation  Retained  Proposed Total
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividends equity
13 EX
BERA ROEEER SAR%  EREE  RORE  REEN  BERE  EREE
HK§ HKS HK§ HKS HK§ HKS HKS HKS
BT AT BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1F—f-H 26,700,480 50,856,881 660,651 48,316,084 12425888 107,934,960  5340,09 252,235,040
Profit for the year REERA - - - - - 154114 - 154114
Other comprehensive loss RNEERM 2 AR :
for the year:
Exchange differences on HERINEHE
translation of foreign EXCEREE
operations - - - - (6137548 - - (6,137,548)
Surplus arising from revaluation Bt RETZ
of land and buildings, B
net of tax = = - 5237976 = = - 5237976
Total comprehensive loss TEERAHEES
for the year = = - 5231976 (6,137,548) 154,114 - (745458)
Transactions with owners HARARENETLRS
of the Company
Contribution and distributions & RAk
2014 final dividend paid THZT-MERHRE - - - = - - (5340,09) (5,340,09)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-1F
+-A=1-H 26,700,480 *50,856,881  *660,651 *53,554,060  *6,288,340 *108,089,074 - 246,149,486

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$206,360,512 * REETBERIARP CELREERPES
(2015: HK$219,449,006) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 43 & f# $#5206,360,512/8 T( —Z & — 7 F:
219,449,006/87T) °

K & P International Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2016




mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—EB-AEF —T-RF
Notes HKS$ HK$
BiEE BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REFTHZHAESRA
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax B AT(ER) 5 (8,301,763) 204,936
Adjustments for: TR
Finance costs A& R 6 1,675,059 1,804,670
Bank interest income ERITHI B U A 5 (35,630) (42,385)
Depreciation e 13 16,102,428 17,160,024
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR L b A & SR 5H
payments 14 296,132 310,148
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEME BEMERFEZ
property, plant and equipment B8 (U ES) 85,703 (163,976)
Realised gain arising from derivative PTESRITADER
financial instruments — transactions W 2s — N4 Eh
not qualified for hedge accounting @A H - (660,695)
Impairment loss on property, plant ME BREIEHEZ
and equipment BIERE 13 4,835,785 -
Provision for slow-moving inventories, T ERYE o B
net 5,626,028 469,516
20,283,742 19,082,238
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid rent ERHEE 2D (Ehm) 142,800 (155,550)
Increase in inventories FE28Em (974,899) (8,925,883)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TR « e RE M LGKRIE
deposits and other receivables 2 3Eh),wA (352,491) 880,618
(Increase)/decrease in trade and BB REE 7
bills receivables (#hn), R (2,149,718) 5,343,375
Increase in trade payables & 1+ BR 18 2 38 0 691,175 1,753,666
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities ErtBEREMENTIBE Y
and other payables GRi), /1840 (9,730,058) 1,082,267
Cash generated from operations EEBMEL 2 RE 7,910,551 19,060,731
Interest received BIKFE 35,630 42,385
Interest paid BERFIE (846,173) (839,660)
Interest element on finance lease BEREN K2 EE D
payments (828,886) (965,010)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBFIEHR (1,119,363) (2,299,562)
Overseas taxes paid BEfHEINRIA (1,087,887) (1,387,042)
Net cash flows from operating activities RESEE) IS AR
- page 66 — %668 4,063,872 13,611,842

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
—RE —T-RF
Notes HK$ HK$
B = BT BT
Net cash flows from operating activities P - R TN
— page 65 — 5658 4,063,872 13,611,842
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING RETB 2RSSR M
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWME  BELEE
and equipment (5,544,890) (12,685,670)
Proceeds from termination of forward R IFR G S RIS E
currency contracts - 404,248
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - BB MRE
property, plant and equipment FriS 38 73,565 316,669
Net cash flows used in investing REFSH 2B RLFE
activities (5,471,325) (11,964,753)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING MEFB 2RSSR
ACTIVITIES
New unsecured bank loans/revolving SRR ITER EBREH
term loans/trust receipt loans BR1 pu%ﬂﬂzﬁ%‘ém 49,122,046 59,959,003
Increase/(decrease) in discounted bills BRI Z R 7100 S OR A 345,603 (756,800)
Repayment of unsecured instalment fa;aﬁﬁﬁ SHEE /
loans/ bank loans/revolving term loan/ TERBREHER
trust receipt loans %EEH&TEE,%’K (40,271,208) (60,622,181)
New finance leases raised FIEmERE 1,618,654 5,685,131
Capital element of finance lease BEMEN Rz EARE D
payments (10,868,303) (9,274,513)
Dividend paid BERIRE - (5,340,096)
Net cash flows used in financing BMEEFH R ML FE
activities (53,208) (10,349,456)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH FeRBSEEERZ
EQUIVALENTS WD (1,460,661) (8,702,367)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FHzRE RREEEER
of year 26,303,950 35,305,971
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EREE) 7 T2 - HEE
net (459,133) (299,654)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRz2EEREELEHEHER
AT END OF YEAR 24,384,156 26,303,950
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeREESHEERGHRZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Bl
Cash and bank balances e RIBITE 22 24,384,156 26,303,950

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

K & P International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Its registered office is located at Units 2304-06, 23rd
Floor, Riley House, 88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) were involved in the following principal activities:

e manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
(comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and part); and

e design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products (comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products).

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). These financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
land and buildings and an available-for-sale financial investment,
which have been measured at revalued amount/fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

These financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2015
financial statements except for the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year as set out in note 2.2 to the financial statements. A
summary of other principal accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

2.1

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REE%E (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at 31
December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries
are prepared for the same reporting period as that of the Company
using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and
profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests at the
date when control is lost. The amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the disposed subsidiary
are accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
parent had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any
investment retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts
owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate
from the date when control is lost.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the
Group and effective from the current year had no significant
impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company
for current and prior year.

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to
HKASs 16 and 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Annual Improvements Project 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments include changes in the following five areas:
(1) materiality; (2) disaggregation and subtotals; (3) structure of
notes; (4) disclosure of accounting policies; (5) presentation of
items of other comprehensive income arising from investments
accounted for using equity method. It is considered that these
amendments are clarifying amendments that do not directly affect
an entity’s accounting policies or accounting estimates.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BE_ZT-AF+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BEREBECEE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Amendments to HKASs 16 and 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 both establish the principle for the
basis of depreciation and amortisation as being the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits of an
asset. The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that the use of
revenue-based methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset
is not appropriate because revenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than
the consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset.

The amendments to HKAS 38 clarify that revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in an intangible
asset. This presumption, however, can be rebutted in certain
limited circumstances.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011): Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to
account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in their separate financial statements.

The Company did not elect to use the equity method to account
for its investment in subsidiaries in its separate financial statements
and therefore, the adoption of the amendments did not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2012-2014 Cycle

(M

HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Changes in Methods of Disposal

These amendments clarify the accounting for a change in
an entity’s disposal plan from a plan to sell to a plan to
distribute a dividend in kind to its shareholders (or vice
versa). Such a reclassification shall not be treated as a change
to a plan of sale (or distribution to owners) and accounted
for as such. Consequently, such a change in classification is
considered as a continuation of the original plan of disposal
and the entity will not follow the accounting for a change
to the plan. Besides, to address the lack of guidance in
circumstances when an asset no longer meets the criteria
for held for distribution to owners, the amendments clarify
that an entity should cease to apply held-for-distribution
accounting in the same way as it ceases to apply the held-
for-sale accounting when the asset no longer meets the
held-for-sale criteria.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(@) Servicing contracts

These amendments clarify what kind of servicing
contracts may constitute continuing involvements for
the purposes of applying the disclosure requirements
for transferred financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Annual Improvements Project — 2012-2014 Cycle

(continued)

2)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (continued)

(b)  Applicability of the Amendments to HKFRS 7 concerning
Offsetting to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

These amendments also clarify that the additional disclosure
required by the amendments to HKFRS 7 concerning
offsetting is not specifically required for all interim periods.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting: Disclosure of
Information “elsewhere in the interim financial report”

The amendment clarifies the meaning of disclosures of
certain information “elsewhere in the interim financial
report” as allowed by HKAS 34. The disclosures shall be given
by cross-reference from the interim financial statements
to some other statement that is available to users of the
interim financial statements on the same terms as the interim
financial statements and at the same time.

The adoption of the amendment did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and not yet effective for
the current year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'
Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments with HKFRS4
Insurance Contract?

HKFRS 16 Leases?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
& The effective date of the amendments which was originally intended to

be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
has been deferred/removed

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the
results of the Group.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EREHBRBE

POLICIES

Subsidiaries Ft B A =]

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The B AR TIANEBRTIZES 2 B o A
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to %l;j EEREFTS ZT“@JIEI#EE@%‘
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the DR FEHERN - WHENBBEAZ
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. E‘E?;Z%jjé;; ZZE O RE - BIARER
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and HZEREZEHE - MESERERE
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of T~EAR—IES ZIAEHEREHIREH)
the elements of control. B BIASES ST EET DA

SBALE R °

In the Company's statement of financial position which is M AR 21 E IR AN B EE BT

presented within these notes, an investment in subsidiary is BR © HE25RARR [ 2 AR R M 5

stated at cost less impairment loss. Al o

Related parties BEAL

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. AT AERNERFEENEASNE
B

(=2

FZALTBATALTHRTALR

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related

—
Q
~

to the Group if that person: FE 2R RN E RS AT

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () PR ERNERIASEE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEATES =%

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) BASEHAEEITRAE
Group or of the parent of the Group. TEBEIKE -

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) ZEERWEASAEEBEALM
conditions applies: A THIERMEME :

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEBEMAEBEAEREER
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and ZRKEAT(ENER AT - M
fellow subsidiary is related to the others). BRAILRARHBAR AR

HERAE) °

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —EAEBES —EEMNHE
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of HEEPE(RES—BRBA/K
a group of which the other entity is a member). BERAZEEETKE AT

ZHE A ERE) o
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (i) MEEBEAERE=F2
BERE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BE_ZT-AF+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXRSTBRME (#)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued) BEAL(E)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (ivy —HERAF=FEEZE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. BhFE MR BREAEXLS

=HhERBZEERT -

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) EEERBAEASEENERE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity Iﬁf‘a@@ EREEERA
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, R B E RAETE o 1|J]
the sponsoring employers are also related to the Group. 75;‘,% B AR5 E & E

iﬁfﬁﬁﬁbﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%&ﬁﬁiﬁi
KEEBRE -

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) BEEEREX()ETMALE
identified in (a). il R

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii) E’\( YO EFTA A LRI SR E
over the entity or is a member of the key management BEEAFE NN XER
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). (&;AE‘&EZ!’A A)ZEE

EREIKE -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (vii) ZEBIZEBEEE 2
part, provides key management personnel services to FRKE A R M ALK E A
the Group or to the parent of the Group. SEHARREREIEETE

A B RRTE °
Close members of the family of a person are those family ZAT AR R TR AR T BB 1T
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced RGEGEHEZNTHZZALTHEZZ
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include: EXREKENBIE :
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) ZATZFLZNECBREZE:
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZALZRBIRERM 2 TFI:

)58
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (€0 ZALTHZATZEBXRERE
domestic partner. H2RE -

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries EF%L}\iE’JE% Bt e N ) B 1 5
of the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the NN MEEtEBREZEEDR
joint venture. %W%’&ﬂ
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Land and buildings are stated at revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of valuation less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are performed
frequently to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not
differ materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the asset revaluation reserve. Decrease in valuation are first
offset against increase on earlier valuations in respect of the same
asset and thereafter charged to profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged.

As the Group's lease payments for its leasehold land and buildings
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and buildings
elements at the inception of the lease because similar land
and buildings are not sold or leased separately, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the leasehold land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

ME BERREBERITE

M - BB KRB TIAR RS A ER R
FHTE REREERRIIE - 9%
R MR B 2 KA BB EE L
HBEEEMEZERBRIME
EREEKA - RYE - BERRER
BEERMSI Bz ERREEREM
X —REBEREEHBENERA
BR o fHZR|HEREE - AR BRI
XEREERAEFENMCER—RE
B HADHBERYE  BERRED
EEHD - AIXAKREEKZFEDER
REREAEABFHRTENELNE
o

T REFIHREMETR - BAGE
Bz A FEERRETERRERE
BB - EEECAFEESETER
ZFHEAERI G BEAREEAEAE
Bl o W% - BERREZEEREAE
TEEEMRFRIEDRE - HERD
TEEANEKEERRE —EEZREM
BN MERMERERINR - HRE
BEEZEARHFAFAFTER - HED
SRBHSERT AR 2 B AR BNER o

BB i MR T ) R Bk
B MAREz L RIEFHERKEE
REERBRA SO R T RET
i BEHEERERREHRERAY
% - FELREAR L RETFHERK
K o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2% t0 2.7%
2.5% to 30%
10% to 25%
10% to 30%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
Moulds 20% to 33.33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of their expected useful lives or the term of the leases.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset. On disposal of a revaluated asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
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BEIEME  BEEREZITETILAER
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TH REF 2%Z%E2.7%

HEYZEERE 2.5%%Z30%

%55 M i 23 10% %25%

Rifh - EEBER 10% 230%
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Development costs

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the followings: 1) the technical feasibility of completing the
project related to the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale; 2) its intention to complete and its ability to use
or sell the asset; 3) how the asset will generate future economic
benefits; 4) the availability of resources to complete the project;
and 5) the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products (not exceeding five years), commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

BREE(RTHE)

81 o 8 ) SR T2 B EE TA ) 25 HE SR R AR K
RETE - XA T RBETLEERN
FRARTha% B ER UL RS B B R E(E -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group are accounted for as finance
leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. At
the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease obligation. Assets held under
capitalised finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group.
The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge
over the lease term.

Rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives are
charged to the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or as available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HEZ

B AETASt—ALER

Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date (the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank balances,
trade and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables and
available-for-sale financial investment.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and bills receivable, and deposits and other receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are not held for
trading. They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-free loans
and without any fixed repayment term or the effect of discounting
would be insignificant. In such case, the receivables are stated at
cost less impairment loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition over the
period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or through the amortisation process are recognised
in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated at this category or not classified
in any of the other categories of financial assets.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale financial investment valuation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or loss as
a reclassification adjustment. Interest and dividends earned are
reported as interest income and dividend income in the income
statement respectively.

When the fair value of unlisted investment cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial investments
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent
to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the Group
may elect to reclassify these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted when the
financial assets meet the definition of loans and receivables and
the Group has the intention and ability to hold these assets
for the foreseeable future or to maturity. The reclassification to
the held-to-maturity category is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset (whether
significant or not), it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account.
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the income statement,
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” is evaluated against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss (measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement) is reclassified from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale are not reversed through the income statement. Increases
in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss (measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement). Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the income statement, if the increase in fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its
financial liabilities at initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the events of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period of the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks (including
term deposits), which are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews internal
and external sources of information to assess whether there
is any indication that its property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land lease payments may be impaired or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried
at revalued amount in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease in accordance to the accounting policy
relevant to that asset.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in profit
or loss immediately, except where the relevant asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase in accordance to the accounting
policy relevant to the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.
Expenditures for which a provision has been recognised are
charged against the related provision in the year in which the
expenditures are incurred. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount provided is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

2.4 EXRETHRBE (&)
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial o [(MEELENIBAMGHRBIAEEDR

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

From the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HEZ

B AETASt—ALER

Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on the date
on which the entitlement of relevant employees to the award
is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any non-market
vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the vesting period,
the number of share options that is expected to vest ultimately is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve within
equity.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification, that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date
of modification.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. Share-based payment transactions in which
the Company grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees
are accounted for as an increase in value of investment in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at fair value of the goods or
services received, except where the fair value cannot be reliably
estimated, in which case they are measured at the fair value
of the equity instruments granted. In all cases, the fair value
is measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the services.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEME(2)

POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for
all of its eligible employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the
Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having
a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal. The termination benefits for the employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are charged
to the income statement when they become payable based on
the requirement of the labour law in the Mainland China.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(which is the Company’s functional currency). Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined.

The results and financial position of all the group entities have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into Hong Kong dollars, the presentation currency. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period and their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 3. BEaEest(ihst R Er
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements RENGETBHRRE  BEEBELM

are made by the management in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. They affect the application
of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are
assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and
relevant factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where
appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

Inventories

The Group does not have a general provisioning policy on
inventories based on ageing given that the inventories are not
subject to frequent wear and tear or frequent technological
changes. However, as a significant portion of the working capital
is devoted to inventories, operational procedures have been
in place to monitor this risk. The Group reviews the inventory
ageing listing on a periodical basis for those aged inventories. This
involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory
items with the respective net realisable value. The purpose is
to ascertain whether allowance is required to be made in the
financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In
addition, physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodical basis in order to determine whether the allowance
needs to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified.

Trade receivables

In judging whether allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts of the trade receivables have to be recognised in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group takes into
consideration if there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect the debts. Following the identification
of doubtful debts, the Group’s responsible personnel discuss
with the relevant customers and report to management on the
recoverability. Specific allowance is only made for receivables that
are unlikely to be collected.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Determining an appropriate amount of an impairment requires
an estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant property, plant
and equipment or the respective cash generating units (“CGU")
to which the property, plant and equipment belong, which is the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable
amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the relevant assets or the CGU and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or the CGU for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or there
is a downward revision of future estimated cash flows due to
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, an additional
impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2016, impairment
losses of HK$4,835,785 have been recognised for property, plant
and equipment. The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment was HK$195,460,747 (2015: HK$210,287,742).

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and Singapore. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision for tax and the
timing of payment of the related taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact on
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made. The carrying amounts of tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2016 were
HK$119,426 (2015: HK$2,578,712) and HK$14,382,611 (2015:
HK$9,877,996) respectively.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Current and deferred income taxes (continued)

The recognition of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes place. As at
the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax assets (2015:
Nil) have been recognised because it is not expected that future
taxable profits will be available against which the Group can
utilise the benefits therefrom.

Valuation of land and buildings

The Group’s land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment are stated at their revalued amounts in the
consolidated statement of financial position, which are assessed
annually by management with reference to valuations performed
by independent professionally qualified valuers. In determining
the revalued amounts, the valuers have based on the method
of valuations which involve certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation reports, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuations
is reflective of the current market conditions. The carrying
amounts of the land and buildings at 31 December 2016 were
HK$120,286,000 (2015: HK$116,231,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its products and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) the precision parts and components segment comprises the
manufacture and sale of precision parts and components
comprising keypads, synthetic rubber and plastic components
and parts;

(b) the consumer electronic products segment comprises the
design, manufacture and sale of consumer electronic
products comprising time, weather forecasting and other
products; and

(c) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
long term investments, together with corporate income and
expense items.

Management, the chief decision makers, monitors the results
of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of adjusted (loss)/
profit before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted (loss)/
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s (loss)/
profit before tax except that bank interest income and finance
costs are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the cost of sales.

Intersegment management fee is eliminated on consolidation.

BE_ZT-AF+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4,

Year ended 31 December 2016

KRETBER#)
BE-_Z—AF+ZA=1+—HILEE

Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
BEEHH ETHER MR EM st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: 2EBA
Sales to external customers HIMHE 342,437,095 88,580,294 - 431,017,389
Intersegment sales WEPERISHE 9,286,648 600,042 - 9,886,690
Intersegment management fee NEABRIEEE = - 5,760,000 5,760,000
Other income and gains, HA Rz -
excluding bank interest income AEERTHERA 11,443,740 1,065,144 19,563 12,528,447
Reportable segment revenue PRBERA 363,167,483 90,245,480 5,779,563 459,192,526
Reconciliation: HEp
Elimination of intersegment sales WESEERIISH & 2 3 (9,886,690)
Elimination of intersegment AERIEEE  H i
management fee (5,760,000)
Bank interest income BITH WA 35,630
Total revenue, other income and gains YA ~ EftHRA KU 443,581,466
Segment results: PEEE 16,260,466  (21,236,413)  (1,686,387)  (6,662,334)
Reconciliation: B -
Bank interest income BITH WA 35,630
Finance costs BEMRA (1,675,059)
Loss before tax BRERIEE (8,301,763)
Other segment information: HitpBEH
Depreciation e (10,749,422) (2,294,211) (3,058,795)  (16,102,428)
Loss on disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE - BEN&EZ
plant and equipment, net e B (85,703) = = (85,703)
Provision for slow-moving inventories,  iHTF S - FE
net (37,153) (5,588,875) - (5,626,028)
Surplus on revaluation of land T RIEFER 2 AR
and buildings credited to STAEMRERA
other comprehensive income 3,737,441 - 8,453,327 12,190,768
Amortisation of prepaid land lease BT L E T
payments (296,132) - - (296,132)
Provision for impairment losses on 0% BERZEZ
property, plant and equipment REEERERE - (4,835,785) - (4,835,785)
Capital expenditure BARX (5,511,390) (18,570) (14,930)  (5,544,890)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Year ended 31 December 2015

HE_T-AF+-A=+—HILFHE

Precision Consumer
parts and electronic Corporate
components products and others Total
RET R EFHEM BE R EAM @5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue: ikl O
Sales to external customers HIMHE 344,599,023 87,157,644 - 431,756,667
Intersegment sales NEERIEE 4,998,885 421,133 - 5,420,018
Intersegment management fee NI BRIERE = = 5,760,000 5,760,000
Other income and gains, H A RS
excluding bank interest income TEERTMEHA 8,761,588 2,124,053 48,339 10,933,980
Reportable segment revenue PRBERA 358,359,496 89,702,830 5,808,339 453,870,665
Reconciliation: B -
Elimination of intersegment sales WEARRIHE < 3535 (5,420,018)
Elimination of intersegment AEERIERE 2 B
management fee (5,760,000)
Bank interest income FITH WA 42,385
Total revenue, other income and gains ~ ZBHA ~ EBARKE 447,733,032
Segment results: PEXE: 14,209,733 (11,348,762) (893,750) 1,967,221
Reconciliation: A -
Bank interest income HRITHI WA 42,385
Finance costs BEMRA (1,804,670)
Profit before tax BR B AT A 204,936
Other segment information: HipHBEH
Depreciation neE (11,501,713)  (2,650,208)  (3,008,103)  (17,160,024)
Gain on disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE - BEN&EZ
plant and equipment, net Yogs - FEE 122,368 41,608 - 163,976
Provision for slow-moving inventories,  B$HFEHEE - FE
net (58,905) (410,611) = (469,516)
Surplus on revaluation of land THREFERZBH
and buildings credited to SAEMEERA
other comprehensive income 2,676,204 - 3,144,444 5,820,648
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B TS R
payments (310,148) - - (310,148)
Realised gain arising from derivative TESRTAD RN
financial instruments - transactions ~THAHAEER
not qualified for hedge accounting R5 502,128 158,567 - 660,695
Capital expenditure ERRY (12,622,409) (25,169) (38,092)  (12,685,670)

BEHEERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BRETEER#)

Geographical information i & B R

(@) Revenue from external customers (a) #IPEFLA
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 41,166,394 56,719,130
Mainland China ERlETpN173 70,645,244 64,263,195
Japan and other Asian countries AAREAMTMNER 102,754,155 65,116,420
North America =M 39,563,643 41,413,546
South America g M 6,842,036 12,092,106
Europe BM 162,093,158 184,728,799
Other countries H MR 7,952,759 7,423,471

431,017,389 431,756,667

The revenue information above is based on the geographical LA _E W A& BHR R P AT i [ £
location of the customers. 7 e
(b) Non-current assets b) FETEEE
2016 2015
— —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong BB 56,396,561 50,704,901
Mainland China R B R RE 150,116,900 171,714,129
Other countries H At 216,980 204,319

206,730,441 222,623,349

The non-current asset information above is based on the NERBEEERNIREEME
geographical location of assets and excludes an available- wEEloy  BEfeRa#HbEs
for-sale financial investment and prepaid rent. B E RBERANES
Information about a major customer FEEFER
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no HEZT—RFR-T—AF+=A=
customer contributed over 10% of the total sales of the Group. T—HLEFEAR  YEFEPEAEERZ

HEZMN10% °
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - HtW A R Wz
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after WAIEARFEANHEEE M EESEN
allowances for returns and trade discounts, during the year. BEERE S -
An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and gains is AREBUWA ~ EUA RS D AT0
as follows: T :
2016 2015
=F—AF —TRF
HKS$ HK$
BT P IT
Revenue ['ON
Sale of goods BEmiges 431,017,389 431,756,667
Other income and gains H g A & Wz
Bank interest income ERITHBUTA 35,630 42,385
Tooling charge income 1B A 715,227 1,048,323
Sale of scrap RERLSHE 1,524,544 767,938
Sale of samples BmiHE 1,172,670 1,254,393
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEREEZ
plant and equipment, net Wz - JHER - 163,976
Realised gain arising from derivative PTHEEmIT A #R KR
financial instruments - transactions not — T REEFEENENRZ S
qualified for hedge accounting - 660,695
Foreign exchange gain, net 5 as - FRE 8,648,080 5,653,606
Write back of overpayment from customers & F % {5 i1 #[E = 699,173
Others Hth 467,926 685,876
12,564,077 10,976,365
Total revenue, other income and gains  ZUA - EU A RS 443,581,466 442,733,032
FINANCE COSTS 6. RUERA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BEXRH DT
2016 2015
= s
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RAFREEZRITERK
wholly repayable within five years FEXFE 846,173 839,660
Interest on finance leases REREF S 828,886 965,010
1,675,059 1,804,670

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

7. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BBiAI(EE) EF
The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRTA(ERER) SR M&HBR S
(crediting): GPNE
2016 2015
—E—REF T —hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration 8 LR (BHEREEME
- note 8)*: —BizE8)* :
Wages and salaries I&ERF® 149,337,296 151,560,946
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes #ERTEFI5FT B #E5% 16,823,664 16,729,352
166,160,960 168,290,298
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 372,793,317 370,598,636
Provision for slow-moving inventories, net* & iH{F S - FEE* 5,626,028 469,516
Auditor’s remuneration RER M & 1,190,656 1,191,547
Depreciation* E 16,102,428 17,160,024
Provision for impairment losses on property, 13 - BiF k&2
plant and equipment BB ERE 4,835,785 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T 1178 & i 35 296,132 310,148
Minimum lease payments under operating T REFZ HIKE
leases on land and buildings* HEMEH 7,272,199 5,848,325
Realised gain arising from derivative TEem I AR #E Ka
financial instruments - transactions not — T HEEHHPETENR D
qualified for hedge accounting - (660,695)
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 Was - R (8,648,080) (5,653,606)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEMZE - BFEk&ZEZ
plant and equipment, net B, (WzR) - FE 85,703 (163,976)
#  The staff cost amounted to HK$135,752,372 (2015: HK$135,978,026), # RNEE 2 8 T X#135,752,372%8 T
depreciation amounted to HK$13,379,903 (2015: HK$14,475,580) and (ZZ — A #F:135,978,026/% T ) *
minimum lease payments under operating leases on land and buildings W EEE13,379,903 B (T — A F -
amounted to HK$6,777,242 (2015: HK$5,377,140) for the year are 14,475,580/ 70 ) & T RIEF 2 D4
included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement BEMNK6,777,2428 T (ZF— A F:
respectively. 5,377,140 ) ER R B EELE FH
RZISHERARIR °
* The provision for slow-moving inventories for the year is included in * REFEZHEFEREERBSERE
“Cost of sales” in the consolidated income statement. BRZIEERAIA o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

8. INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF 8. EHEERANER
DIRECTORS
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Sl ik - A NG LEin e
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as BESMEeT
follows:
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMS
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BIHBTEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REEAZMN T B IENT
during the year were as follows: EFE8E
2016 2015
= —T-h%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Kung Fan Cheong LEE 333,936 333,936
Leung Man Kay B E 333,936 333,936
Li Yuen Kwan, Joseph s 333,936 333,936
1,001,808 1,001,808
There were no other emoluments payable to the REFANIWEEN T B ERITEEZ
independent non-executive directors during the year HtMe(ZT—RF : &) -
(2015: Nil).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

8.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(if)  Executive directors

8. FRES=EMNER )

(a)

Exme @)
(i) BITEE

Contributions
to retirement

Discretionary benefit Other Total
Fees Salaries bonus schemes allowances remuneration
RHER
e ¢ BiERa SIS Hitn28 AHm
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2016 —E-AE
Executive directors;  ${TES :
Lai Pei Wor ?ﬁiiﬁ‘ﬂ - 2,486,458 - 18,000 61,100 2,565,558
Chan Yau Wah R - 2,035,982 313,228 - 50,000 2,399,210
- 4,522,440 313,228 18,000 111,100 4,964,768
2015 —E-nf
Executive directors: WT%? :
Lai Pei Wor RBEM - 2,486,458 366,060 18,000 50,000 2,920,518
Chan Yau Wah Bk - 2,035,982 449,610 - 50,000 2,535,592
- 4,522,440 815,670 18,000 100,000 5,456,110
There was no arrangement under which a director REERNIMEEHEEZTHA
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any B R E ok R B EE A o
remuneration during the year.
(b) Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour (b) UNEEATHZAZER - £8
of directors MRHEMKRS
There were no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour ARARRAFEE AL W] LT
of the directors of the Company that were entered into or TUNEERZTAZER £8
subsisted during the year (2015: Nil). REEMR G (ZE—RF: £) o
(c) Directors’ material interest in transactions, () EERNRS RPHEHNZE

arrangements or contracts

After consideration, the directors are of the opinion that no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company or a
connected entity of the director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

KiEs

REZER EFTAR/REAFER
SARFEANERERE  BEFE
RRARMER—HBRARBER
ZEARS  “HRAHNAARR
FESXEEZHETRNHES
BAREZRAREE 2 EAER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EfUERSHFES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two AREERAUGEHEESEMU(ZE
(2015: two) executive directors, details of whose remuneration —hF: MADATES - FHEEIR
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of EXHiFES e p N =AI(ZFE—FRHF: =
the remaining three (2015: three) non-director, highest paid ) EREHZIEEEEE 2 HMFR
employees for the year are as follows: T
2016 2015
—B-AE i
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Z24% & * EZR REWH = 3,802,088 3,499,626
Discretionary bonus EIEIEAT 346,124 496,830
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes R R4EF&HEI K 34,500 36,000
4,182,712 4,032,456
The remuneration of non-director, highest paid employees is B2 IEESEE 2 F B FTE 4 B4
within the following bands: T ¢

Number of employees

BEAK
2016 2015
—F—AF —T—HF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 #£221,000,00078 7 - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7T 21,500,000 7T 1 2
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L %2,000,000/8 7T 2 1
3 3

BEERERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HEZ

B AETASt—ALER

Year ended 31 December 2016

10.

INCOME TAX

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

(2015:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on assessable profits outside

P&

EEFNEGHREERAFEENRAETBNG
SHERFE N IA16.5% (ZE— R4 -
16.5%) KB KB - TR BB IRINE

Hong Kong have been calculated at the tax rates prevailing in R EA MR IE R R IEARER K ST
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. BRI T AR XS o
2016 2015
—REF —T—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Current — Hong Kong NEA—HB
Charge for the year REFEXH 528,610 1,699,833
Over provision in prior years A F R (115,755) (695,143)
Current — outside Hong Kong NER— BRI
Charge for the year REFZH 707,901 1,087,335
Over provision in prior years EEBEE R (1,375,639) (2,041,203)
Deferred tax ERERLIE 63,269 =
Tax (credit)/charge for the year REFHRBER),TH (191,614) 50,822

A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/
profit before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
operated to the tax (credit)/expense is as follows:

BERGERNARBREXZHHE AR
PR EEREMKREA (BR), J8F2
EEB R ERMTIAESR), & AR
BIE(ER), /" BRZBHNAT :

2016 2015
—~E —T—RHF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Loss)/profit before tax BB AT (B518) A (8,301,763) 204,936
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% IREEHE16.5% 2 1A
(2015: 16.5%) —“ZF—FF :16.5%) (1,369,791) 33,814
Effect of different rates for companies ~ E A2 Z‘“%ﬁﬁi‘%‘*ﬁglzﬁﬁﬁ
operating in other jurisdictions TEBER 2% 184,576 102,456
Income not subject to tax VE%%RZJ%U\ (1,930,054) (732,664)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 & A 1,311,260 1,572,953
Unrecognised temporary differences AERCEREER 1,746,962 (427,836)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BN LARTARTER < I B 1R
tax losses (97,135) (14,741)
Over provision in prior years FFBRE R (1,491,394) (2,736,346)
Tax losses not recognised RERZBIBEE 1,584,695 2,321,718
Others Hth (130,733) (68,532)
Tax (credit)/charge for the year REEHBEIEE), T H (191,614) 50,822
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

11. DIVIDENDS 11. RE
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment EETESREHE_Z—F+_H
of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). =T —HEFEZRE(ZZE—AF:
).
12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. XRBEEAFEER(EE)
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRI
The calculation of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share is FREARN RS (ER) /BRI AR
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of NRHEE AFERERE (EER) 58 &
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary REEANDBITINEESEEIREE 5T
shares in issue during the year. o
The calculations of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share FIREARREE(ER) B TR
are based on: T=t&
2016 2015
ZB-XRF —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
(Loss)/earnings (B8),BF
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the RNARES AFTL(EE)
Company used in the basic and diluted (loss)/ /& F AR BRER K
earnings per share calculation E(E8),/ BAEE (8,110,149) 154,114
Shares [iidv)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in AFERE #7172 T
issue during the year used in the basic and HEBIREE AR SR
diluted (loss)/earnings per share calculation EAREE (BB
FEtE 267,004,800 267,004,800
As there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares, diluted (loss)/ AvEAEENTER £ —F
earnings per share was the same as basic (loss)/earnings per share RZT-—HFHNERER(ER),BF
in 2016 and 2015. HEE(ER), BFER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - MERFRE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles Moulds Total
G- BER
THREF HE£E  HEREE  BAZRE RE KR @i
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HKS
31 December 2016 “E2-RE
tTZA=t-H
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-h%
1 January 2016: TZA=t-Bk
TR
-A-B:
Cost or valuation RASIEE 116,231,000  55041,663 147,885,659 34,317,705 4729853 60,527,234 418,733,114
Accumulated depreciation Z3thE - (2.735319)  (93,134,709)  (29542,773)  (2505337)  (60,527,234) (208,445,372)
Net carrying amount KEHE 116,231,000 32,306,344 54,750,950 4,774,932 2,224,516 - 210,287,742
At 1 January 2016, R=E—~E-A-R"
net carrying amount REHE 116,231,000 32,306,344 54,750,950 4,774,932 2,224,516 - 210,287,742
Additions AE - 1,008,062 2,905,356 365,368 1,266,104 - 5,544,890
Disposals HE - - (97,526) (41,033) (20,709) - (159,268)
Depreciation il (3733,073)  (2.862661)  (7,395733) (978,795)  (1,132,166) - (16,102,428)
Impairment loss BEER - (1571328) (2,541,912 (439,100) (283,445) - (4,835,785)
Surplus on revaluation credited to ~ EfERERETA
other comprehensive income Ef2ERA 12,190,768 - - - - - 12,190,768
Exchange realignment Bz (4,402,695)  (2,494,546)  (4,182,707) (277,623) (107,601) - (11465172)
At 31 December 2016, RZB—1E
net carrying amount = =
FEFE 120,286,000 26385871 43,438,428 3,403,749 1,946,699 - 195,460,747
At 31 December 2016: RZB-—1E
+=A=t-R:
Cost or valuation A EE 120,286,000 52,553,820 142,931,997 33,938,368 5734611 60,527,234 415,972,030
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZFTHER
impairment loss HEEE - (26,167,949)  (99493569)  (30534,619)  (3,787.912)  (60,527,234) (220,511,283)
Net carrying amount REFE 120,286,000 26385871 43,438,428 3,403,749 1,946,699 - 195,460,747

Analysis of cost or valuation at  KCAZIEEAH

31 December 2016: R-E—E

t=A=t-R:
At cost AR - 52553820 142,931,997 33,938,368 5734611 60,527,234 295,686,030
At valuation it 120,286,000 = = = - - 120,286,000

120,286,000 52,553,820 142,931,997 33,938,368 5,734,611 60,527,234 415,972,030
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ - BERRE#)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Land and Leasehold Plant and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Moulds Total
i #ER
ThRET HEXE  HRREE  BAZRE D R @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT AT AT AT BT
31 December 2015 —T-1%
tZA=1-H
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME
1 January 2015: TZA=+-BR
—E-1E
—-A-R:
Cost or valuation A EE 116250000 54,082,353 147412647 31500072 4642077 60,527,234 414414583
Accumulated depreciation Zitihe - (19881212)  (89.400,816) (28,514,345  (1475656)  (60,527,234)  (199,799,263)
Net carrying amount REFE 116250000 34,201,141 58,011,831 2,985,727 3,166,621 - 2145615320
At 1 January 2015, RZZ-15-A-H"
net carrying amount KEAE 116,250,000 34,201,141 58,011,831 2,985,727 3,166,621 - 2145615320
Additions AE - 2,406,635 7,205,765 2,914,172 159,098 - 12,685,670
Disposals e - - (150,058) - (2,639) - (152,693)
Depreciation il (3672,606)  (3039416)  (8314,259)  (1,067,144) (1,066,599 - (17,160,024)
Surplus on revaluation credited to ~ EfEREETA
other comprehensive income Ef2EMRA 5,820,648 - - - - - 5,820,648
Exchange realignment B % (2,167,042 (1,262,016)  (2,002,329) (57,823) (31,969) - (5521,179)
At 31 December 2015, RZZ-1%F
net carmying amount TZR=t-H"
FEFE 116231,000 32,306,344 54,750,950 4,774,932 2,224516 - 210287742
At 31 December 2015: RZE-1F
TZA=f+-A:
Cost or valuation A A 116,231,000 55041663 147885659 34,317,705 4729853 60527234 418733114
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - (2735319)  (93,134709)  (29542,773)  (2505337)  (60,527,234)  (208,445372)
Net carrying amount RE%E 116,231,000  32,306344 54,750,950 4,774932 2224516 - 210287742

Analysis of cost or valuation at  RCAZIEEAH
s £

31 December 2015; N2

tZA=1-A
At cost A& - 55041663 147885650 34,317,705 4729853 60,527,234 302,502,114
At valuation it 116,231,000 = = = = - 116,231,000

116,231,000 55,041,663 147,885,659 34,317,705 4,729,853 60,527,234 418,733,114
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % - MERKRE#)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at the end of the
reporting period by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuers. The land and buildings in
Hong Kong were revalued on the basis of market value by the
comparison approach, based on their existing state, while the
buildings in Mainland China were revalued using the depreciated
replacement cost method. No changes were made in the valuation
technique(s) during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015. A surplus arising from revaluation on the land and buildings
of HK$12,190,768 (2015: HK$5,820,648) has been credited to
other comprehensive income.

Had the Group’s land and buildings been carried at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying amounts would have been included in the
financial statements at approximately HK$53,853,000 (2015:
HK$55,765,000).

The directors have reviewed the carrying value of property, plant
and equipment under Group's consumer electronic products
segment which the segment have been making loss for a prolonged
period of time and determined that the recoverable amount
from the use or sale of certain of these assets has significantly
declined below their carrying amount. Accordingly, the carrying
value of these assets has been reduced by HK$4,835,785 (2015:
Nil) to reflect this impairment loss. The recoverable amount of
these assets amounted to HK$151,292 (2015: HK$7,590,922) is
determined by reference to the fair value less costs of disposal
by reference to the market price of an active market, if any, and
the value in use of the relevant assets, using the discount rate
of 4.0% per annum.

ANEEZ T REFRIFEERABEL
BELAERGEMEGETEHNGE -
BT EREFREBRFANTSEE
BEREFAORLERS  mPBARED
BFARFTESERNEEH - HE
T E—ARFRE—RF+_A=1
—BIEFERN BE@AGEFETEE
HEmEE ALl EmELENE
HE#12,190,7688 (T — A F :
5,820,648 ) E AT AEMEEUA ©

AN [ £ 3 Fo AE 5 AR S AR AR R 5T
EXRERBEYIE  HEAEEF AN
IR B - B B 4953,853,000/8 70
—ZE—FH4 :55,765,00087T) °

ETEEMAEREFHERD BNY
¥ BELARENERE  WHOBES
B-BEEAMEENEAREES T&
EEEMNITRESESE AR ENE
REE - Al - 25 EEMNERREDH
4,835,785 L (ZE—RF &)
DARBRISREEE - Z5EEEER
W Bl & 581512928 (=T — A1 F :
7,590,922 L ) B E 2R E R F
BEREHESKANZERT SN MSE
B(WE) REFERAEBEFRAINEFFE
4.0 o
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=T—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2016

14. LA ER

2016 2015
ZE-RE —T—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—HHERAEE 12,638,972 13,350,738
Amortisation during the year ANFE B (296,132) (310,148)
Exchange realignment E (787,864) (401,617)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HBHKREE 11,554,976 12,638,973
Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERFIA ~ & K
deposits and other receivables H b R R IE R R B 55 (285,282) (303,366)
Non-current portion SEMENEL 1D 11,269,694 12,335,607
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. Ht L& &
Deferred
development
costs
5 FE 25 R AR
HK$
AT
At 1 January, 31 December 2015, R-ZZE—hF—H—H +=A
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016: =+—8 -ZF—FR"F-HA-HBRK
ZB-ARFt+=ZA=+—-8:
Cost (DN 28,740,000
Accumulated amortisation RETHE 5 (28,740,000)
Net carrying amount BREFE -

BREERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

16. SUBSIDIARIES 16. B AT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARFBAT
Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable

Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
R/ MR
AR AR 3k BRTRAZRYG ARAFERABEEAE FEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —2-1% ZB-Af —T-1F
Cokeen Development Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of management
BRERBR A B 10,0007 7 10,0007 7T and administrative services
REER RTBRS
E-Dotcom Limited Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
BA 2T 28T REER
Hideki Electronics Limited Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100  Sale of consumer electronic
AREFERAR A% 2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T products
HEBTHEM
Hi-Tech (China) Investment Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Limited A 2,000,000 2,000,000 REER
mE (hE) REBRAF
Hi-Tech Investment Holdings British Virgin Islands US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100  Investment holding
Limited REARRES 50,0003 T 50,000% 7T REER
Hi-Tech Property Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Limited Mainland China 127 (Ev MERE
SREBARES/
e
Hi-Tech Precision Industrial Hong Kong ~ HK$1,500,000  HK$1,500,000 100 100 Sale of precision parts and
Limited A% 1,500,000  1,500,0007%7C components
TEEEIEERAR HERETHMT
Hunpex Limited Hong Kong  HK$4,650,000 HK$4,650,000 100 100 Investment holding
RIpEER AT B 4,650,000 4,650,000 REER
K & P Group (Holdings) British Virgin Islands/ ~ US$1,238,545 US$1,238,545 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong ~ 1,238,545%7  1,238545% 7T BAER
EBEARES /BB
K. S. (China) Electronics Hong Kong HK$2 HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
Manufactory Limited ) 2B 28T REER
2y (RE) SFRERAR
Mars Field Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 US$1 100 100 Investment holding
ES75- YN Hong Kong 1% (E REZR
KREBRES/BE
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16. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Br B AR MY R )

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=T—HLFE

16. Y28 (&)

Year ended 31 December 2016

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest
registration and attributable
Company name operations Issued and paid-up share to the Company Principal activities
R/ ZEf R
ARER EES b ERTRAZRG ARRMERAEEE AL FEXRH
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-RE —T-hF ZB-5f —T-I1F
Sun Ngai Plastic Products Hong Kong  HK$10,890,000  HK$10,890,000 100 100  Sale of plastic parts and
Factory Limited A% 10,890,000/ 10,890,000/ T components
HEEBARBERAT HEBBTHMT
Technology Trends British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 US$50,000 100 100  Sale of precision parts and
International Limited Singapore 50,000% 7T 50,000%7C components
EBgMRES/ HERETHH
HIR
mE (hl) EFERAA Mainland China ~ US$10,000,000  US$10,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REIREE  10,000,000%%  10,000,000%7T of precision parts and
components
SERHERTTHMS
FITERBEFERAR Mainland China ~ US$3,000,000  US$3,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REIAEE  3,000,000%7%  3,000,000%7T of precision parts and
components
HE RHERETH M
FREREE (RYI) BRAF Mainland China  HK$8,000,000  HK$8,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale
REREE 8,000,000/ 8,000,000 of plastic parts and
components
SERHELBTHMN
HERET (R) BRAF Mainland China ~ RMB4,000,000  RMB4,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
REAFEE  4,000,000AR% 4,000,000AKE consumer electronic

Except for K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Ko

EREEED

Rtk »

products
HERHESTHER

Br K & P Group (Holdings) Limited 5|
LHimERB AR AARREER

EERA - ERMIIHZARRMER
AIEFEAFREEENBRAREE
cBRIRA M
i B R RNFHADER - E3IHARE

BEHEERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL INVESTMENT 17. At HEERMIRE

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$ HK$
BT T
Club membership, at fair value e RATEE 680,000 680,000
The fair value of the club membership is determined with EMEENATEERZRARAEE
reference to the publicly available price information. ZEBEER -
18. PREPAID RENT 18. %
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
B IT BT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BHEREE 311,100 156,850
Utilised during the year NEEREA (150,450) (156,850)
Exchange realignment E AR (17,850) =
Payment made during the year REFERK - 311,100
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=1+—HAKNKEE 142,800 311,100
Current portion included in prepayment, STATENFKIE - EHER
deposits and other receivables H b B W IB YA B 21 (142,800) (155,550)
Non-current portion IEREERD = 155,550
The above prepaid rent represents prepayment for next year RERNHE R ERRBREEEEHE
rental expenses for Guan Lan factory under operating lease. The THT—FHESE - ZREBRERHEE
amount is amortised over the lease term. HRBESH o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

19. INVENTORIES 19. #&
2016 2015
= i
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Raw materials JR# 28,725,819 28,922,636
Work in progress E&m 10,413,047 13,173,346
Finished goods K om 28,948,069 25,016,054
68,086,935 67,112,036
Less: Provision for slow-moving inventories & @ #8517 S & (7,728,168) (2,102,140)
60,358,767 65,009,896
All inventories, excluding those fully provided for with nil carrying FIBFEETBEZEEEE AT AEER
value, are stated at cost. HER JI A AT B -
20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20 EHRE e RHMERK
RECEIVABLES FIE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments TE IR 2,290,272 2,293,363
Deposits and other receivables e REMEUGRIE 7,687,667 7,350,169
9,977,939 9,643,532
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HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

(continued)

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. BRIERRE

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade receivables FEYARIE 77,135,806 75,331,691
Allowance for doubtful debts RIZERER (822,410) (822,410)
76,313,396 74,509,281

Bills receivable discounted with recourse A] 3R O] /9 fE U AL 3R 22 4%
(note 25) (FfF5E25) 345,603 =
76,658,999 74,509,281

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required. Invoices are normally payable within 60 days
of issuance, except for certain well-established customers, where
the terms are extended from 60 to 90 days. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Information regarding the concentration
risk on trade receivable is detailed in note 36. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts of these balances
approximate to their fair values.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions,
is as follows:

AEBEEFEEGRRT TRFFH
FHEERER  ENEP —REBERN
HE - —REEFTEENTRAN -
RFEBEFAZANTENTRER
iR - BREFPHBEEREE - ~5E
HREERIRRARRERFILEER
BERAREEERR - SREEESE
HRST 8 B R WAE R IE R - SRR RUUR
TR 2 BRI BRI 36 - B IKER
BRRB - AR REEREERTE
ERE -

PR IR FE W R TR 1% 3% 3% B B OB
BERZERERDITOT

2016 2015
—E-XREF —ET—hF

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Within 90 days LARA 71,731,625 70,317,648
91 to 180 days n+—Z2—8NA+XK 4,383,568 3,845,130
Over 180 days —BEN\TRNE 198,203 346,503
76,313,396 74,509,281
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HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EWERIER ZEi (#)

An ageing analysis of the bills receivable as at the end of the

RS IR ERR R E R A2 KRR

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AT
2016 2015
—E—REF T —h%F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 90 days +RA 345,603 -
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there BE_ZE—RNEE-FTE—AHFt+t-_A=

was no movement in allowance for doubtful debts of trade
receivables.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not

T—RLEFER  BERRZRERE

R EmEH o

AR R ER BB IRIA R R R 2 MRk

considered to be impaired is as follows: DATEAT :
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—F
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Neither past due nor impaired AREER IR AR VERVE 60,015,253 53,012,135
Less than 1 month past due #E DR —1E A 11,988,107 14,456,896
1 to 3 months past due BE—Z=={8 A 3,890,087 5,671,130
3 to 6 months past due BHI= =758 A 765,552 1,369,120
76,658,999 74,509,281

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

REHTTARERENRURARRAE
TREFER  ZEFEFPORLENE

BACEE °

BEERERERAR
—E-AEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

BHE-—Z—AFT-_A=T—HILFE

Year

21

22.

ended 31 December 2016

. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

21.

BWRIERRE(#)

BHERIERENBUIRIATI R AE R
AEBBRERZRENBLES - R
BEEER  ARRESRA/EBZE
BRI ERZELRERR  ER%S
EFMEEELEBEANEE MR AR
WA AR AR B E - REBHZ
FHBY BB TR EBIRRE
B2k -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. HERBREEEER
2016 2015
ZB-ARF —T—AF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash and bank balances He MIRITERR 24,384,156 26,303,950

At the end of the reporting period, included in the balance of
the Group are bank balance and cash deposited in the Mainland
China and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of HK$8,435,771
(2015: HK$7,550,225). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China‘s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

REREHR - REBAEFHKEZ 4
BHREEUARE (T ARE DFHEZERIT
Ee NI 58,435 771B L (—E—H
F 1 7,550,225%87L) - ARBETEEE A
HIpE A EE - ERE R B KREINEE
SIERRERET « HERZHHERR
T AEEEES BERELEFINE
T2 RITIE AR HAINE o

RITREFRBEEMICILEE DD
SREVERTT
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23.

24.

TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

R T e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

23. BRI

K& HIARE M AR IRIR % R A 2 Rk

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: AT
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hHEF
HK$ HK$
BT P IT
Within 90 days N+RA 44,308,732 44,262,025
91 to 180 days A+—Z—BN+X 1,977,194 1,301,367
Over 180 days e =PAG > N> 157,120 188,479
46,443,046 45,751,871

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms varying from 60 to 120 days of invoice date.

RNEREREER —BREFZBHZN

+E—FH-_+XKEE -

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. EtEERHEMENSKIE
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Toolings and mould deposits received ~ BEWEREAEZ S 4,627,730 6,709,211

Sales deposits received and B ERS R

other accrued liabilities HpEstas 1,175,386 3,106,153
Other payables E fth e FRIE 9,145,482 11,506,725
Staff cost payables ENETIRX 27,541,905 30,898,472
42,490,503 52,220,561

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
credit period of three months.

Hit B RBEAREREERRFA=

@A -

BEERERERAR
—E-AEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

25. FRBITREMESR

2016 —E—RE
Effective interest
rate (%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
BEREFE%) FIHH B IT
Current
RE
Finance lease payables (note 26) 1.45-3.50  Fully repayable from 31/7/2017 to 26/10/2020 9,240,187
FER R A E (FiFE26) H=2—tHtA=+—HZE
“ECEFTACHABZEBEE
Bank loans - discounted bills with 3.67-3.75 Due for payment from 6/1/2017 345,603
recourse (note 21) to 3/2/2017
RITESR—FIREMERER H=2—t&H—HKHE
(Bt&E21) “E2-tF-A-HEHAR
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.46-3.93  Fully repayable from 13/1/2017 to 26/3/2017 19,000,000
ERAMER —EEF H-2—tF-A+=HZE
ZE-tEZRA-+RAREHEE
Instalment loans — unsecured 3.21-3.44  Fully repayable on 29/1/2018 2,767,046
DEE R — EEA RZB-NE-A-thB2HHEE
Trust receipt loan 2.98-3.49  Fully repayable from 4/1/2017 to 7/2/2017 5,046,332
EREIERER H-Z—tF—-AWAZE
“E-—tF-HAtRE2YEE
36,399,168
Non-current
FRB
Finance lease payables (note 26) 1.45-3.50  Fully repayable from 31/7/2017 to 26/10/2020 5,894,556
FERTRVETEE (Fit26) H-_Z—tFtA=+—-HZE
“ECEFETASTAARRHEE
42,293,724
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. HFERTREMBEE (#H)
BORROWINGS (continued)
2015 —E—FhF

Effective interest

rate (%)
per annum  Maturity HK$
ERFEME%) FEH BT
Current
B
Finance lease payables (note 26) 1.45-3.50  Fully repayable from 31/7/2017 to 23/12/2019 10,678,370
FERTR & E (fiFt26) B-Z—tFLA=1+—HF
“T-NF+-_A-t=H2EEE
Revolving term loans — unsecured 2.90-3.54  Fully repayable on 7/6/2016 11,000,000
TAIRE HE R — mKT RZZE—R"EXAtBEE2EEE
Instalment loans — unsecured 3.20-3.26  Fully repayable on 29/1/2018 5,235,127
2 HE R — R RZE-N\F—AZ+hB2&EE
Trust receipt loan 2.44-2.81  Fully repayable from 18/2/2016 to 6/4/2016 1,727,413
BB ER H-E—RF_ATNHZE
ZE—RFENANBEHER
28,640,910
Non-current
FERE
Finance lease payables (note 26) 1.45-3.50  Fully repayable from 31/7/2017 to 23/12/2019 13,706,022
FERT R A E (Fiizt26) H-_Z—tFLtA=1T—HF
“E-NETAZT=B2HER
42,346,932
Note: The Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings in the amount of Mizk: AEBZHERTREMEER
HK$216,797 (2015: HK$2,768,287) which would otherwise be classified 216,797 L( =ZF — A4 : 2,768,287
as non-current liabilities have been classified as current liabilities because BIT)ERI B AFERBARE  EHE
their terms include an on-demand clause. For the purpose of the above "AnEBEES S A FERERERNG
analysis, the loan is included within current interest-bearing bank and Ko ELMMDITT  ZEeEERBE
other borrowings and analysed into bank loans and other borrowings ERBTERITREMEE  UHTA
repayable within one year or on demand. —FARRERERNOBITERRE A
BE -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate AEEEEZEREEAEAFEEBA

to their fair values.

BEERERERAR
—E-AEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 26. EREHEE
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum REpEEIR - RIBFEHE THAFTR
lease payments under finance leases and their present values AExPHERBERAERSERAT :

are as follows:

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
BROHEERE BOHEFENRSE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —T-HF ZB-RE —ZT—hF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BTt BT BIT
Total minimum finance lease BAR—FNERRD
payments payable within one year EIEFEFIA 9,735,666 11,494,008 9,240,187 10,678,370
Total minimum finance lease BARE_ZFRER
payments payable in the second ~ ENZIREHE
to fifth years ZIE 6,096,716 14,304,250 5,894,556 13,706,022
15,832,382 25,798,258 15,134,743 24,384,392
Future finance charges HEMBER (697,639) (1,413,866)

Total net finance lease payables R RS T E4aF5E 15,134,743 24,384,392

Total net finance lease payables — #WHEARSHEBZ
which are classified as ENmEfEaFR
current liabilities (9,240,187) (10,678,370)

Total net finance lease payables — #AMEAFERHEREZ

which are classified as ENRERELFE

non-current liabilities 5,894,556 13,706,022
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered into BE_ZE—REFTA=T—"HILFE
two sale and leaseback arrangements with a finance company N AEEE-SREBRITMNER
for certain lots of machineries. The aggregate amount of cash Bz HHENE THEE - ZREHRE 2
received from the finance lease was HK$1,618,654. Principal of B 5% 51,618,654 70 - @&
finance lease is repayable by 48 monthly instalments together HE 2 N ERYEERZRFHNZEI.25
with finance charges at 3.25% per annum, with purchase options [E LA48ME A o BAEE - W R
at the end of the leases at a minimal value of purchase price. SRR EEREE CREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued)

27.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group entered into
two sale and leaseback arrangements with a finance company
for certain lots of machineries. The aggregate amount of cash
received from the finance lease was HK$5,685,131. Principal of
finance lease is repayable by 48 monthly instalments together
with finance charges at 3.25% per annum, with purchase options
at the end of the leases at a minimal value of purchase price.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment held under finance leases, and was
therefore pledged, was HK$30,852,405 (2015: HK$33,488,864).

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

2016

26.

27.

BE-Z-RFt-A=T—RALFE

Year ended 31 December 2016

EAmERS )

HE_Z—AF+_A=+—HILFE
A $’il§ﬁi SREBRITIMOER
NEZ HERE THSE - 2Rt EHE Y
IH & e Eﬁ@%’ﬁﬁzs 685,131/ 7T ° B&E
HE2 AN ERMBERIRFEFEI.25
[E 30 bA48fEl A » HifE & - W AR
ERREERREBEZRERE -

R-ZBE—RE+-A=1+—0  Kx&EF
ERERETHEEZYE  BEKEE
B T Z BRI {8 430,852,405/ 7.(
—ZE R : 33,488,864B7T) °
EER IR
REFRZELEHBABREELEN
™

EiERIEEE

—E—RE

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BHEBRTEZ
mERE L/ EERE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—HA—H 808,763 9,069,233 9,877,996
Deferred tax debited to equity REERERNR 2
during the year ERERIE - 4,441,346 4,441,346
Deferred tax debited to income ~ ANEERFERING Z
statement during the year R IE 63,269 - 63,269
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE—RF+A
31 December 2016 =+ —HZIEERIA
BERE 872,032 13,510,579 14,382,611

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

2015

27. EEBE (&)
EEHBAREE)
—T-hfF

Depreciation
allowance in

excess of
related Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
FRE AT E
mERE YIS E 5T
HK$ HK$ HK$
AIT BIT BT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—AF—H—H 808,763 8,486,561 9,295,324
Deferred tax debited to equity REFRERHRZ
during the year EETIE - 582,672 582,672
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R—ZFT—HF+=-A
31 December 2015 =1+ —HZELEFIE
BfEHER 808,763 9,069,233 9,877,996
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from R ERIEIL PITE B EE 2 EE
2016 2015
= —T-hF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Deductible temporary differences A TR TR =R 16,205,013 8,212,803
Tax losses MIAEBE 4,633,408 3,091,541
At end of the reporting period RS HAZR 20,838,421 11,304,344

REBEPBERELEAF/VE - RPBEX
BERZ AN RECERRAINERESE
IR B ZAZ10% B W IEINN o bR
EH-_ZENF—HA—BRER W&
ARZZE+LF+A=+—HBENAE
) o fisirp B e BLONE 3% B & 1) BEME

Pursuant to the Mainland China Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign BETER B - RIAIEAEERNTEH
investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on P& Bt AEBFEERNFEAX
dividends to be distributed by those subsidiaries established in BER M MZENBARR S NF—
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January A—BREENBNADIRNR SR
2008 onwards. BEL o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been recognised for
such withholding taxes that would be payable on the retained
earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China that are subject to withholding taxes at distribution. In the
opinion of the directors, these accumulated profits, at the present
time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of retained earnings associated
with these subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$18,335,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$16,688,000).

At 31 December 2016, the Group has unrecognised tax losses
that can be offset against future taxable profits of the respective
subsidiaries. No deferred tax assets have been recognised because
it is not expected that future taxable profits will be available
against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. The
expiry dates for unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

BE_ZT-AF+-A=+—HLFE
Year ended 31 December 2016

27. IEFEBLIE (&)

EAEBIHEE(#E)
RIZ—RE+-A=+—0 " ~&E

IHE‘JEE':P.K@:W_LZWE ANEIFEYIN
DIRIREE B FIEFE £ 2 RS TR R R
BRI - EERARBAALZER

s AETZHA 7?—?2=Z«(A A

ERERKBEMEDIK - R=ZF—<F+

ZA=+—8  WEERHEETBRARE
Fﬁ% AR AR B 2 REFHIEAE
4851#918,335,0008 L( —ZF— A F ¢
1 6,688,000/67T) °

R-Z—RE+-A=+—0 " ~&E
BRI AR Z M B QR R R
ME KRR IAR R - ARAKEREE
TEET AT AR REENH) ERTOE ) -
I R Lt FERIRIETR IR B B © R HE
RRBEBERNERBELWT

2016 2015

—RE —hEF

HKS$ HK$

BT P IT

Tax losses without expiration 15 8w < B IR S 1 23,125,698 14,749,083
Tax losses expiring in: VAT 2 B IE B 18

2019 —E—NF 400,336 395,454

2020 B -FF 2,263,921 2,236,317

2021 —E-—F 606,412 -

At end of the reporting period RIEHAR 26,396,367 17,380,854

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

ZAYNCIVISRL ¥
BREE -

HPRR A A H PSR

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. IR
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$ HK$
&I BT
Shares Jigvil
Authorised: ERE
900,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 900,000,000% &% E &
0.10787T 90,000,000 90,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
267,004,800 shares of HK$0.10 each 267,004,800 &z E &
0.105 7T 26,700,480 26,700,480

29. BB AEEHE
RAREHRAN—E——FERA=-+=
B A BERRARERTEI([5HE])) - 5HEIRE
TAE :

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
with effect from 23 May 2012. A summary of the Scheme is as
follows:

B & RBERBEERERSEA
THASEELZER RS
Sk in B AN SR B S 5 K 8 B
HREERTAEAEERET
(] 75 £5 8 555 B EL AL (A AN 1
w2z RE([FIRERE]EA
BERBEZANER -

Purposes To provide incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their
contributions to the Group and/
or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds an

equity interest (“Invested Entity”).
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Participants

Total number of ordinary
shares available for issue
and the percentage of
the issued share capital
that it represents as at
the date of the annual
report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

(i) any employee (whether full-
time or part-time), executive
directors, non-executive
directors and independent
non-executive directors of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or
services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;
any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity; any
person or entity that provides
research, development or other
technological support to the
Group or any Invested Entity;
and

(i) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested
Entity.

26,700,480 ordinary shares and
10% of the issued share capital.

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

R T e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=T—HLFE

2EAT ()

(iii)

A FRITEOE
BB RS A BUA
RERARF
HAEHED
BITRAR
Bk

BR2EAL
AR S
R

Year ended 31 December 2016

29. BIRETE(2)

ARA - BREMAKBL
AIREERMARE AT
ZEAEE(THREB
SHRE)  MITES 3k
HITESE KB IFATT
£ N

A AN = B E ] A B 2 7]
SAE A A 2 R4
9 RS 2 A 4B
CREN B0
ARFZEARE [
A5 B SR AE T B4R 2
AR - IR AR
b kiR 2 EAAL
KA R

AEEEAKE QAN
EAATIRE R R ZEA
BERKAKEEAIKE
REREMATIE QA
P B 1T & 75 2 (E ]
FAA °

26,700,480/ L3 A% &
HEETIRAZ10% °

EEMEARN T
"SEBRBADEDET
AR Z21% o

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Period within which the
securities must be
taken up under an

29. BIRERT & (&)

An option may be exercised at BEEBRER SEABRATRESR
any time during a period to be BESFNE TR 2HBEAE
determined and notified by the i3] ] B P 77 {56 BB PR 42 -

option

directors to each grantee, but shall
end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of the grant of
options subject to the provisions for
early termination thereof.

EEEMFMIBERTTE
BRaRLBERER
HiE SH10F (R IR &
R 7R M 42 4% LE B BR
D) ©

Minimum period for There is no minimum period for BT TEZEEREZA
which an option must ~ which an option granted must be RINZERE WEVNEBENRE

be held before it can

be exercised

Amount payable on

acceptance

Period within which
payments/calls/loans
must be made/repaid

Basis of determining the

exercise price

The remaining life of the

Scheme

held before it can be exercised.

The offer of a grant of share options
may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer with a
consideration of HK$1.00 being
payable by the grantee.

Not applicable.

Determined by the directors but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date
of the offer of options, which must
be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer of options;
and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

The Scheme remains in force until
22 May 2022.

BB A2 HIR

FEf M H

kA
RHMEE
B B
HAMR

TTEENEE

&l R EY
FH

HiMR -

AR AR R R B R
BEZZAR-+TN
B EERNEER
8 & %81.00%8 7t 18 £
MR EE -

TEM -

HEFRE LR
ERTIFRZRDE
(V& B A 1R B A
BEZEBH(ARX
Z B ) 2 Wi {8 (LA B
RFTERMERAEE B
) (iE B
BREZZANOE
RXPAZFHRTE
(AR 22 BT B $ 2% P 4
FHRE) - Ri)yRA 7]
B mEE -

SEIERHE T ——
FRA-+-HIt-
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29.

30.

S HmRM T

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There were no share options granted, exercised, cancelled or
forfeited since the adoption of the Scheme and there was no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

RESERVES
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 63
and 64 of the financial statements.

The share premium account represents the excess of the net
proceeds or consideration from issuance of the Company’s
shares over their par value.

The application of the share premium account is governed
by Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of
the Group’s reorganisation and represents the excess of the
nominal value of the share capital of the former holding
company of the Group, K & P Group (Holdings) Limited, prior
to the Group’s reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1996, over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefor, less the amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid
shares issued on the incorporation of the Company.

The asset revaluation reserve of the Group is used to record
the increases in the fair value of land and buildings and the
decreases to the extent that such decrease relates to an
increase on the same asset previously recognised in equity.

The exchange fluctuation reserve of the Group is used to
record exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

29.

30.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

BRETE(2)

BRERTA AL ZAEEBREIN
BRE LR e

BERALLEH BIASR - SWEIRH - 176
A HIMENBBRERN T —RFR
“E-RF+TZA=+T—8B - BERT
1502 RERSCHE -

]
(a) &£HE

RERERIANMFEEZ RSB RHE
kEBE 2 NAPBHEKFEE3
ROARZIFAEREBK ©

B aEREZRTARARNE
KR HRBAFELARBBEE
EEZ &R °

B REBRZERSARE—N
N—FRAEFLOEKEE -

AEBZHBARBREAAEEE
B EAEER—ANANES
EHBARRAIRG L2 EHRIA
EEZAER AT K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited 2 R% A E{EE
ARABARBZER G MEIT
AEEMZHZEBREAIA
B R AR B 2 5 AR 2 B By B
TRBEGED 2258 -

AEBEEERHEEMBIETD
BT REFRAFEEBZEM
HERLDHNEERREREER
BER AT EEE MR E

N2
S o

T

AL B 2 [ 5K B R = A I AT
SR EIBIMNEE A B RKR M
EEMELERE -

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

30. RESERVES (continued)

(continued)

30. f#E(#)

(b) Company (b) AF]
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
R R ER BB 2 EA @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—hF—H—H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,556,633) 78,300,229
Profit for the year and total RERRMNEASE
comprehensive income for the year E N - - 21,830 21,830
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—1%F
+ZA=1+-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,534,803) 78,322,059
Profit for the year and total FERRTRAER
comprehensive income for the year FEBALSE - - 93,841 93,841
At 31 December 2016 R=B-~%F
+ZHA=+-H 50,856,881 49,999,981 (22,440,962) 78,415,900

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the underlying consolidated net assets
of K & P Group (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries at the
date on which the Group’s reorganisation became effective,
referred to in note 30(a), over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor, less the
amount capitalised to pay up the nil-paid shares issued on
the incorporation of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed
surplus in certain circumstances. As at 31 December 2016,
the Company'’s reserves available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$27,559,019 (2015: HK$27,465,178).

RRE]ZHABEIE K & P Group
(Holdings) Limited X EB{B A AR
EEEHAERBZEAEEFE
B HAR AT EITARIRZ A F]
BABEZ B(FBHSFNRT S
HEHFE30)) * BEBMEEARE
AR AR B 2 MK B 81T
RAFBMD 2 EF -

BIBEERE—NN\—FQ%
AARAERLEFTRTRBAR
BABRMEKREELDIE - B
ZE-R"E+ZA=+—H &
ARIRBEERE-—NN\—FAF
ETHEE - AIEARRES IR
2 #527,559,01958 T ( —F —
R 27,465,178787T) °

132

K & P International Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2016



R T e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. KEHERH
The Group leases certain of its office properties and factories AREFERBRKEHELHHERE TiA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties and EMENKE  c ZEHAMENEEZ
factories are negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years. ETFTEHANFE—ZERETE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future RIBEEKR - REBIRBETREEUBLZ
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases HEZBERRLVEMHEEZREGEN T
falling due as follows: HRFEI 2 AR -
2016 2015
ZB-RF —T—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Within one year R—FA 4,202,208 2,026,462
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RE_ZERF
(BREEREMF) 1,096,466 317,200
5,298,674 2,343,662
32. COMMITMENTS 32. E&E
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any R E BAR 78 & B 3 £ 1F fa] & 2N
capital commitments. e
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEAERS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: REEEEEBEAS 2 :
2016 2015
TEB—RF —_T—hF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Short term employee benefits MHEERA 10,096,788 10,454,374
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes RR1E A EHEI 5k 52,500 54,000
Total compensation paid to TR FEEEEAB ZBIRE
key management personnel 10,149,288 10,508,374
The above compensation for key management personnel of the AEAEETEZERAB 2 HBMBIEX
Group includes emoluments paid to the Group directors. Further NTPASEES M - BRAESH S
details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to the LT E R B ER Y TSRS o

financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 3. SMIENSE
Rk - 2RI ASERNEES
W -

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2016 ZE-RF

Available-for-

Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
BEXRK AHHE
PR IE SWMEE st
HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT I B IT
Financial assets: SREE !
Available-for-sale financial AEHESREE
investment - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERENHE &k
prepayments, deposits and Hith I SR E
other receivables (note 20) (BF7£20) 813,277 = 813,277
Trade and bills receivables (A GIENES 76,658,999 - 76,658,999
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFeSMEEAE 24,384,156 - 24,384,156
101,856,432 680,000 102,536,432
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R AR A SR
Ze@mEaE st
HK$ HK$
I BT
Financial liabilities: SHEE:
Trade payables FEfTBRIR 46,443,046 46,443,046
Financial liabilities included in accrued BEREGTBEREMERNFKIA
liabilities and other payables (note 24) ZemBE (:E24) 9,399,527 9,399,527
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #5877 & HAb & & 42,293,724 42,293,724
98,136,297 98,136,297
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

34. ST AMSME &)

(continued)
2015 —E—hF
Available-for-
Loans and sale financial
receivables assets Total
B AT &
U SR IE TRUEE 5T
HK$ HK$ HKS$
SIT BIT BIT
Financial assets: TRIEE
Available-for-sale financial AHNESREE
investment - 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERENFIE Ze Rk
prepayments, deposits and EERZIBE SREE
other receivables (note 20) (Fig3E20) 1,100,165 = 1,100,165
Trade and bills receivables e BRIE & =1 74,509,281 = 74,509,281
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeSFEEE 26,303,950 - 26,303,950
101,913,396 680,000 102,593,396
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R SH R 251 BR
ZamAats 5T
HK$ HK$
BIT BIT
Financial liabilities: SHERE:
Trade payables FETBRIE 45,751,871 45,751,871
Financial liabilities included in accrued BEREAEREMERNKIE
liabilities and other payables (note 24) Zemat (H24) 11,005,319 11,005,319
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #5 8 3R1T R EMEE 42,346,932 42,346,932
99,104,122 99,104,122

BEERERERAR
—E-AEEH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

35. AFEEHE
AEBe@ TANEKERERAHEERD

instruments are as follows: T
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ATEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XE —T-HF ZEB—XRE —T—HF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Financial assets: ERMEE -
Available-for-sale financial AP ESMITE
investment 680,000 680,000 680,000 680,000
Financial assets included in BERBRNRIE -« &
prepayments, deposits and ® R EH A REIRIE
other receivables (note 20) ZEemMEE
(Mt3E20) 813,277 1,100,165 813,277 1,100,165
Trade and bills receivables JEUBRTE I =15 76,658,999 74,509,281 76,658,999 74,509,281
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIFSEEEE 24,384,156 26,303,950 24,384,156 26,303,950
102,536,432 102,593,396 102,536,432 102,593,396
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE ATEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RXE —T—HF ZEBE—XRE —T—HF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Financial liabilities: SEAasE:
Trade payables FEfTARIR 46,443,046 45,751,871 46,443,046 45,751,871
Financial liabilities included in ~ BEREAEGER
accrued liabilities and Hib eS8
other payables (note 24) TRBE(ME24) 9,399,527 11,005,319 9,399,527 11,005,319
Interest-bearing bank and wRIRTREMEE
other borrowings 42,293,724 42,346,932 42,293,724 42,346,932
98,136,297 99,104,122 98,136,297 99,104,122
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables and financial liabilities included in accrued
liabilities and other payables approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments on similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured at fair
value or which fair values are required to be disclosed in these
financial statements on a recurring basis at 31 December 2016
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS
13, Fair Value Measurement, with the fair value measurement
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. The levels of inputs are
defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly;

Level 3 (lowest level):  unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

35. AR EEFE(E)

fRogEsEREEN ERMEERER
MR HEEEHBRERIAT 2 HETR
BRGFA R ETHR ©

AT IERBRE ARG A FEE

RekREFEER  BUEREER
B EANEERE TREESRBMNR
B REMEMEWIE  MefEaE
BREFAEREMEMNFAERLRE
BRBRE - RERILFTARKKER
MEE -

HRERITAAMEBENAHEEDES
RAEE R - EERR MRS R
PASRA TARHAITR R MEET AR
REenEFE -

UATREBMBREEDFEI35% - 2
FIEEFEMREZ AFEE=[EFR
JIHBAFEEAEXAR TN
FH-A=1t—AREFUEEERKE
BHREABRBEEATEEZEEREE
NHEEZOBERERESFRME R
FEENEETEFEATENG AR
B BMABBSAERNT

F-R(EREER): AEEEFERA
MEHEREEXEA
RHER BTS2 MW
BOREAER):

BEXREVTEER
HEEERZBA
g F-RBHE
ZRIBRRON

F=R(REFR): BEXABZTA
BB ARE -

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER

137




I wR M=

Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 35. R EEFEE)
The following table shows an analysis of assets and liabilities TRETEATLEEIAENEEKSE
measured at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy: & WIRAFEBESROEZ O ¢
2016 —E—RE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R et 1 E=® #st
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Financial assets: ETREE
Available-for-sale financial AEHESRIEE
investment:
— Club membership —Efes
— outside Hong Kong —BBFI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and buildings: THI RETF
Commercial - Hong Kong EE BB - 55,290,000 - 55,290,000
Industrial — outside Hong Kong T % —Z&&554) - - 64,996,000 64,996,000
2015 —T-hF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& FE_H E=1 et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
PBIT PSIT BT BT
Financial assets: SREE
Available-for-sale financial AHHESRIRE
investment:
— Club membership —-SHeR
— outside Hong Kong —BBHI 680,000 - - 680,000
Land and buildings: T REF
Commercial - Hong Kong BE—BB - 48,600,000 - 48,600,000
Industrial — outside Hong Kong T % — &) - - 67,631,000 67,631,000
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements
and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

R T e

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BHE-_Z—AF+-_A=T—HLFE

Year ended 31 December 2016

35. AR EEFE(E)

T—HLEFEA

BHE-_Z—ErR-_T—HE+-A=

AFEEHRE— R

REZRz R EEAERE  BEE=

BRAFEBEABZBAREL -

F=RAVEESEZ2H

2016

—E—-RF

Total

et

HK$

Description it BT

At beginning of the reporting period N ) 67,631,000

Depreciation debited to profit or loss BNk 2T E (1,969,746)

Fair value gain on revaluation credited to BEAFEBERETA

other comprehensive income Hitn2EIEA 3,737,441

Exchange realignment PE 7 FE 2 (4,402,695)

At the end of the reporting period R EHAR 64,996,000
Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period — ZANHARS @ IEEIBEER MR RS HIEK
included in profit or loss held at the end of the BEZAREBR s EIE 2 28

reporting period -

2015

—E-hF

Total

st

HK$

Description b B BT

At beginning of the reporting period RS BT 69,150,000

Depreciation debited to profit or loss B IR 2T E (2,028,161)

Fair value gain on revaluation credited to BEQAFEERGEA

other comprehensive income HiZ2mA 2,676,203

Exchange realignment PE X FE 2 (2,167,042)

At the end of the reporting period RIEEHR 67,631,000

Changes in unrealised gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss held at the end of the
reporting period

AR BIETE IR AR T S B
BAZ RERYGI R AR 2

BEHEERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 35. AR EEFEE)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 2 fair value measurement

Properties located in Hong Kong

The properties located in Hong Kong were revalued by Chung,
Chan & Associates, independent professional qualified valuers,
on the basis of market value by the comparison approach, which
is based on market observable transactions of similar properties
and adjusted for differences in key valuation attributes, such as
size and age to reflect the conditions of the subject properties.

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs
used in Level 3 fair value measurement

Properties located in Mainland China

The fair value of the properties located in Mainland China
was revalued by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professional qualified valuers, using Depreciated Replacement
Cost Approach. The valuer considered the subject properties
are specialised properties for which there is no readily market
observable transaction of similar properties. The estimation
of fair value of the subject properties took into account their
current cost of replacement or reproduction, less deduction for
physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.

BE-RPAFEEFEZBARER
fE{E T ARt

REBZ Y
UREBEBZYERBUEESERME
B ETRABLRTISEEN S AERN
bE ARBRZMBERNERS M
REZMFEMRR 2 EREETERAN
KAgile - MEEELEEAR -

F=RAVEHEFEZWABER
fEET R
TR BIK B W%

URPBEREZMERBIEXEER
HEMGETRABNTEEEXNEERN
e - HEMERIZME BRI -
WS LA EABRZBRNERS - 8
BRI RZ A HEERZERKNE
ERERKA - MRBEERCE2EE
AN REE REL -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Quantitative information of the significant
unobservable inputs and description of valuation
techniques used in Level 3 fair value measurement

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
input and description of valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair
value measurement, including the description of the sensitivity to
changes in unobservable inputs for recurring Level 3 fair value
measurements, are as follows:

Fair value at 31

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

35. AR EEFE(E)

E=ZERNFEEFEMAZEK
FABRGARBE2BLER KM
=W S
F=BRAFEEAEMAZIEATAE
KR ARBEZELENRGET AR
i BEHEENE=RATFEENE
ZNAIBR B A RIS ) 2 GURE I
LI

Sensitivity of
fair value to changes in

Description December 2016 Valuation techniques Unobservable input unobservable inputs
R=Z-~E+=A TIBERAREL
it ST-RRAVEE  fHERE TIRERARE AHEESRESD
Asset
Property, plant and HK$64,996,000 Depreciated replacement  Estimated costs of construction ~ Assuming other factors remain
equipment cost approach of similar type of industrial unchanged, the higher the
- Properties included in premises with adjustment on estimated cost of construction,
land and building: age, condition, utility, etc. the higher the fair value, and vice
Industrial outside Versa.
Hong Kong
ERY GG 64,996,000 NEBERAL BRIZMEEEER HR -  BREAGEETE  EHEERA
“MEBREETHRET : RBEHE MARERA . BR ATEEES  RaHA-
RERNIENE

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group has a team headed by directors reviewing estimation
of fair value of the properties. Fair values of the properties are
estimated by the independent professional qualified valuers on
an annual basis. Discussions of the valuation process and results
with the directors and the Audit Committee are held twice a year,
for the Group’s interim and annual reporting.

KEEERF

AEBYFE2 A FEERHEFEEN
PNMERE - REMRZ A FEESFH
B BXAERMGERE - BERF
RERNEBEMANEENTHARFE
BEREERBERLZEGW

BEHEERZERARAA
TE-ARFEFER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, and cash and short term
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables and accrued liabilities and other payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term debt obligations
with a floating interest rate.

The Group’s funding policy uses short term interest-bearing debts
to finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing
debts over one year or internal generated resources to finance its
capital investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest
rates and the use of fixed rate interest-bearing debts over one
year will only be considered for capital investments and under
favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

MHEREEBERBGR

AEBZIZERTABRERRRITR
HifEE  ARBRESREMER - %%
TRTAZTERNRAAKELZES
KE® - ARENBZHERNEEE
ErEMEMEERAE - HIINEKER
ARRE - AR - 1E REMER
PR - BNERARE R EREMERS

20 -

AEESBTAS R EZRBR AR
Rk - SNERR - FERRMABES
Bk - EF2HMAMAEEREEZS
R 2 BOR - B

FEEB
AEBNTHBFERHEREBREH

B FBHEER -

AEENE S BOREAEBS RERIR
HRBIEEABERA—FULHEE
ERHABERREHESIFEARE -
AEBEBIUEBFRIEEE - —FN
FHEXRSEEERRSEANNTS K
TN T EEBIEERKE

UTFEEBETHR B BIRETE -
FETELRARED 2R T - A%
BBk (R79R), % FIGE B F BYFI
ERRB) 2 BB DI -

2016 2015

“E-RE 1%
Decrease/ (Decrease)/
Increase/  (increase) in Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in loss after (decrease) in profit after
basis points tax basis points tax
2 BB ZEE AR PRt
Bh/(HS)  HY/(EI)  EM/CRD) (R /i
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Hong Kong dollar BT 10 (34,507) 10 (34,898)
Hong Kong dollar BT (10) 34,507 (10) 34,898
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise mainly from (i) the operating units in Hong Kong which
maintain cash in Hong Kong dollar, their functional currency,
but make sales in United States dollar. (i) the majority of the
transactions of the operating units in the Mainland China are
denominated in RMB but their funds are mainly sourced from
Hong Kong operating units.

In view of the fact that the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
United States dollar and that the Group tries to match its assets
and liabilities with the same currency, the Group’s exposure
to USD foreign currency risk is minimal. The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting period to
a reasonably possible change in the RMB exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

6. IEEBEEEERBEGE)

SIS R B

AEBEERZERER - REBRIRE()
HEFEEEEURABERS A
HINBEEH - BHEUETIEAE - (i)
TERTEAELERZEU/ARE
BEEBLEENRETEESWIR -

AR E TT B SE T 88 e AN SR B ER R BE DA
HREBEAEAREERAR &K
B AR RITINE RBREN - A TR
RETRRE BREMBE BRI TE
MARBEXRMEHREERB 2 IFN
T AEEBRBER(EER),8F(EE
HEERABNATVEELEZS)
BURE DT »

2016 2015
ZE-RE —Z-R%
Decrease/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ (increase) in Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in loss after (decrease) in -~ profit after
Exposure RMB rate tax Exposure RMB rate tax
ARBER REZES AREER  RHEET
B Bh/(HP) HD/(Bm) Bl Em/082) (Rd)/%Em
HK$ (%) HK$ HKS$ (%) HK$
BT B BT BT
I Hong Kong dollar weakens BATAAREES
against Renminbi 408,846 5 17,069 581,124 5 (24,262)
I Hong Kong dollar strengthens &R TEAREES
against Renminbi 408,846 (5) (17,069) 581,124 (5) 24,262
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. I EREEEERBEK(E)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. As at 31 December 2016, there
is a significant concentration of credit risk as 21% (2015: 17 %)
of the balance representing a receivable from a single customer
(2015: two customers), which was derived from sales by the
precision parts and components segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 21 to the financial statements.

FERR

AREEREEENS=FLTRS -
REAKENBER - FIEBIREEN®
IRZGNEF  BARBEERERRF
% NEEE - I AEESRHER
REWAEHROITR - MAREAZERE
@I RERK °

AEBEMEREENEERREER
ERBREFEERB - BEREMRYGK
B BLeREENEERRRERAR
HETTEL)  ZARREFNELTA
MIBRE & 78 °

HRAKEERBEENE=ZFETR
% - MARREMEN - KR EERR
mEF/RZHF WERTEERNE
BoR_F-—RE+t-A=1+—8 &
SEFEERETEERRSB21% (=
T—RF 7% ZEBRREBETE
R BEN—2EF(ZT—1F : M4
BF)ZEMGRA -

BREASERARBWERE R EZEEERE
BEEEHE— S E S ER RN TS
WMARMIFE21 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative and derivative
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based
on the contractual undiscounted payments is as follows:

36.

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

BERBEEEERBE(E)

REBE SRR

K E R 2 H R DA ST R R e 2R
A E Y AT RITESRE EOT -

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-A1F
In the In the
Within 2" to 5t Within 2 i) 5
Total 1 yearor years Total 1 year or years
amount on demand inclusive amount  on demand inclusive
-7 B
;i3 FRE
-£xg (BREEE —ERg  (BFEER
oL RER GE) ek BREX ME)
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT AT o o
Non-derivative: FHTER
Trade payables LR 46,443,046 46,443,046 - 45751871 45,751,871 -
Financial liabilities included in BERNEEER
accrued liabilities and i ENZIEY
pikeijpayebleslingiciat) SRAEENEM) 939957 9,399,527 - 11,005319 11,005,319 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & & 17 & 27,217,624 27,217,624 - 18,156,227 18,156,227 =
Other borrowings EfhfEE 15832,382 9,735,666 6,096,716 25,798,258 11,494,008 14,304,250
98,892,579 92,795863 6,096,716 100,711,675 86,407,425 14,304,250

Included in the contractual undiscounted payments of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings is an amount of HK$217,458
(2015: HK$2,823,166) of which the loan agreements contain a
repayment-on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call in the loans at any time.

Notwithstanding the repayment-on-demand clause, the directors
consider that these loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation
was made considering: the financial position of the Group at
the date of approval of the financial statements; the Group’s
compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of default,
and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of the loans,
the contractual undiscounted payments at 31 December 2016
are set out in the above maturity profile.

FEEBRITREMER ZELHARITEN
KER$EE217,4588 L ( —E— R
2,823,166/ 8 L) MEK R ESERA
WA EM TR AT B by Bk EE B
FIEEFK o

AR LR BERERGK  EFEE
AR EEF IR E SR R E A B H
- BRAMEEER « REERHLEL
EHmRE B ZMBHRN - AEEHE
RERIBE 2 BT RAEEMERFA
EASE—BERERBHAEAN B X
RAEER - RZBE—RFE+ZA=+
— BRI E I & M R FART AR 8
RRTIRBERIAEREB 2 547 -

BEHEERZERARAA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued
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Year ended 31 December 2016

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. I EREEEERBEK(E)

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade
payables, accrued liabilities and other payables less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to owners
of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting

BEXREE
AEBEREANEERBERRERE
ERRBELERN RESRBROEARL
R PUXEEEBERLRBERGRE
RHIEME -

AEESRELSBERREECEREER
REWHEIELBE - REFIGIRE
AL - REBEREHBN FRERN
BB BEEARTRRIEITHRD
REENTTH 2 BRI EF RO HIE AR
ER -RBE_T—R"FR-_T—HF
T-A=T—BLEER FREREE
AR BR  BRIGEELE(ELEME
) o

AEERAERAABLREREELRE
o BVEERER AR E R INMEERS
B & - BIEFHEREHBRTREM
fEE - BARE - EitAEREMEN
OE - WHRBREE MRS FEER - B
REEARBEE AFTEER - RIS

periods were as follows: AR ERBELEMAT
2016 2015
—EB-AF —F-HF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings #s E3R1T R E M & & 42,293,724 42,346,932
Trade payables FERTRRIR 46,443,046 45,751,871
Accrued liabilities and other payables EEr B EREMENFRIE 42,490,503 52,220,561
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IReEMReEEIER (24,384,156) (26,303,950)

Net debt I E 106,843,117 114,015,414
Total equity ens R 233,060,992 246,149,486
Total capital and net debt BMERRBEIRFE 339,904,109 360,164,900
Gearing ratio BRBRLE 31% 32%
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

37. REIRB 2 A ARR R

POSITION
2016 2015
—B-AEF —T—RF
Notes HKS$ HK$
=2 BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEB AR ZIEE 193,686,528 193,622,008
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and AR - ek
other receivables H b fE U518 295,229 246,228
Cash and cash equivalents RekFSEEEE 140,598 42,583
Total current assets MENVEE BT 435,827 288,811
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables Bt BB M E RN A 232,880 244,600
Due to subsidiaries FE I B A R F0E 88,773,095 88,643,680
89,005,975 88,888,280
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (88,570,148) (88,599,469)
Net assets BEFE 105,116,380 105,022,539
EQUITY R
Issued capital [BESEi &N 28 26,700,480 26,700,480
Reserves ] 30(b) 78,415,900 78,322,059
Total equity e ABER 105,116,380 105,022,539

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
28 March 2017 and signed on its behalf by

Lai Pei Wor
A
Director

EF

EEgER 2 tF=A-+/\B#t
RS - XA FIALTRERRE

Chan Yau Wah
PBRAZE
Director

EF
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Five-Year Financial Summary

HE-_T—F+-_A=T—HILLEE
Year ended 31 December 2016

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements, is set out below.

AT AARERBEREPBFER 2 FE
BENRAEME - WHREE LR HEZM
MK °

RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=+—BHLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE2-X¥ —T—hF —TWF —T-=F —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T FH&7T FH& 7T FHETT
REVENUE A 431,017 431,757 465,277 419,520 406,872
(LOSS)/PROFIT BELRT(E518)

BEFORE TAX Yo ) (8,302) 205 11,552 23,695 30,322
Tax A 192 (51) (1,029) 2,330 (4,074)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ViN/NCIEZ VN

ATTRIBUTABLE TO B (E18),/

OWNERS OF THE ezl

COMPANY (8,110) 154 10,523 26,025 26,248
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

31 December
+=—BA=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E—RE —T—HF —TWNF —T—=F —T—_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFH T THIT T FHEIT T
Total assets wEE 378,790 398,926 410,579 399,986 344,478
Total liabilities BaEE (145,729)  (152,777)  (158,344)  (145,019)  (112,723)
233,061 246,149 252,235 254,967 231,755
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